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About this Publication

This publication contains both the single entity financial statements for the Police and Crime Commissioner for
Cumbria (the Commissioner) and the financial statements for the group position which incorporates those of the Chief
Constable for Cumbria Constabulary.

The Statement of Accounts is
also available in printed
format from the office of the
Police and Crime
Commissioner for a nominal
fee of £15 per copy.

The Statement of Accounts for
2018/19 is available on the
Commissioner’s website at
www.cumbria-pcc.gov.uk.

The corresponding accounts for
the Chief Constable can be found
on the Constabulary website at:
www.cumbria.police.uk

Alternative Formats

You can get a copy of this document in different formats such as

large print, Braille, audio, or in a different language by calling
01768 217734

Bengali
4fd 01768 217734 qZ A T 74, Ao I’ T 96 90,
TAZe, W5 A GFG (o BEATE g5 TqUBa F 0 FH 1S a9

Cantonese

IR ERRIZE AR AR - 8 KEEIR) - BX - EMEARIESRA - IR @ 01768 217734,

Lithuanian
Paskambine telefonu 01768 217734, galite uZsisakyti Sio dokumento kopijg jvairiais formatais, pavyzdziui, atspausdintg
dideliu Sriftu, Brailio rastu, uZsisakyti garso jrasg arba gauti dokumentg, iSverstg j norimg kalbg.

Polish
Aby otrzymac kopie tego dokumentu w innych formatach, takich jak duzy druk, druk Braille'm, audio, lub w innym
jezyku prosze dzwoni¢ pod numer 01768 217734.

Portuguese
Pode obter uma cdpia deste documento em varios formatos, como por exemplo em Braille, dudio, ou numa outra
lingua. Para tal ligue para 0 01768 217734.

Turkish
01768 217734’u arayarak, bu dokiimanin bir kopyasini biyilk puntolu, korler icin kabartmali, ses dosyasi gibi degisik
formatlarda veya farkli bir dilde edinebilirsiniz
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Joint Chief Finance Officer Narrative Report

Introduction

| am pleased to introduce the financial Statement of
Accounts for the 2018/19 financial year. This financial
statement sets out both the single entity statements of
the Police and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria and
the consolidated group position, incorporating the
statements of the Chief Constable for Cumbria
Constabulary. The accounts are published in

accordance with the Accounts and Audit Regulations

2015.

This section of the statements is the Narrative Report.
The purpose of the report is to offer readers a guide to
the most significant matters reported in our statement
of accounts. It sets out our overall financial position
and a series of mini statements summarising and
explaining the primary financial statements. Itincludes
information on our performance and value for money.
A commentary is also provided to set out the major
influences impacting our income and expenditure in

the current and future financial years.

By providing this information we aim to support our
readers with an understandable and informative
narrative on those matters most significant to our
financial position and our financial and non-financial
performance. This narrative report is provided as part
of the overall publication of the financial statements
and also as a standalone report. It can be accessed
through the Commissioner’s website: www.cumbria-
pcc.gov.uk together with the single entity statements

of the Chief Constable.

Statutory Framework

The Police and Crime Commissioner was established as
a statutory entity under the Police Reform and Social
Responsibility Act 2011 (PRSRA 2011). The PRSRA 2011
provides that there will be a Police and Crime
Commissioner for each police area with responsibility
for ensuring the maintenance of the police force for
the area, securing that the police force is efficient and
effective and holding the Chief Constable to account.
The Commissioner has wider responsibilities than
those solely relating to the police force. These include
responsibility for the delivery of community safety and
crime reduction, the enhancement of the delivery of
criminal justice in their area and providing support to

victims.

The PRSRA 2011 also established the Chief Constable
as a separate statutory entity, distinct from the
Commissioner and with operational independence.
The Chief Constable is responsible for maintaining the
Queen’s peace and the exercise of police powers. The
Chief Constable is accountable to the Commissioner for
leadership of the force, the delivery of efficient and
effective policing and the management of resources

and expenditure.

The PRSRA 2011 sets out the statutory financial
framework for the Commissioner and Chief Constable.
The legislation provides for the Secretary of State to
issue a financial code of practice in relation to the
proper administration of financial affairs. The Home
Office under the legislation issues a Financial

Management Code of Practice for the Police Forces of
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Joint Chief Finance Officer Narrative Report

England and Wales. The Code supports the statutory
framework further setting out the financial
relationships and requirements for the Commissioner

and Chief Constable.

This  financial framework provides that the
Commissioner receives all funding, including
government grants, council tax income and other
sources of income related to policing and crime
reduction. The Commissioner decides the budget,
allocating assets and funds to the Chief Constable.
This, in addition to the powers of the Commissioner to
set the strategic direction for policing and appoint and
dismiss the Chief Constable, creates a subsidiary
relationship between the Commissioner and the Chief
Constable. As such, the Commissioner must publish a
set of group accounts in addition to single entity
accounts. The Chief Constable must publish single
entity accounts and provide information to the
Commissioner to support the publication of the group

accounts.

Our Organisation

The Police and Crime Commissioner is supported by an
office of 11.5fte staff, this includes two statutory

officers.

The Chief Constable is accountable to the
Commissioner and has responsibilities to support the
Commissioner in the delivery of the strategy and
objectives set out in the Police and Crime Plan. Both
entities have appointed a Joint Audit Committee and a
Joint Ethics and Integrity Panel. The Committee and
Panel comprise independent members to oversee
arrangements for governance, including financial
reporting and the arrangements for integrity and
ethical behaviour. Four Custody Visiting Panels fulfil
the statutory requirement for independent review of
custody. Membership of the panels at the end of
2018/19 were: Barrow 10; Kendal 10, North Cumbria
11 and West Cumbria 9.

Our Goals

The Commissioner sets the strategic direction for
policing and wider interventions within the Police and
Crime Plan. The vison for our plan is that Cumbria
remains a safe place to live, work and visit, where the
public has a say in policing and organisations and
community groups work together to address the
causes of crime, as well as the consequences. Key
priorities include keeping crime at low levels, reducing
the impact of anti-social behaviour, bringing criminals
to justice and reducing the harm caused by hate crime,

domestic abuse and sexual abuse.

We work to achieve this by holding the Chief Constable
to account for the delivery of effective policing and by
commissioning a range of activity and interventions
with the Constabulary and our wider partners. The
Police and Crime Commissioner launched his new

Police and Crime Plan ‘Making Cumbria Even Safer’ in
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November 2016 setting out our future strategy and

goals.

Our People

Our people are the most important resource we have
in achieving our goals. Our values commit to having an
empowered staff who are high performing,
professional and have high levels of satisfaction in their
roles. The Commissioner’s Office and Constabulary
perform well in relation to the gender diversity of the
workforce. At Chief Officer Level, excluding the elected
Police and Crime Commissioner, 67% of the single
entity Chief Officers are female as are 100% of senior
managers. A breakdown by gender of the number of
men and women across the organisation at the end of
the financial year and the number of men and women

who were managers is set out below.

Actual Employees as at PCC

Male Female
FTE FTE

31 March 2019

PCC Single Entity

Chief Officers 0.5 1.0 1.5
Senior Management 0.0 1.0 1.0
All Other Employees 0.0 6.8 6.8
Total PCC Employees 0.5 8.8 9.3
Group

Chief Officers 8.0 3.0 11.0
Senior Management 8.0 8.0 16.0
All Other Employees 952.7 860.7 1,813.3
Total Group Employees 968.7 871.7 1,840.3

Chief Executive Report

The Commissioner has nearly finished his third year in
Office. The next Police and Crime Commissioner

elections are due in May 2020.

The Commissioner has been able to further embed his
Police and Crime Plan with the support of the
Constabulary and partners. This has helped establish
effective relationships with key local government,
criminal justice, health and third sector partners to
develop initiatives and commission activities to reduce
crime, support victims and enhance community safety

and criminal justice.

The Police and Crime Plan contains the police and
crime objectives, which all contribute toward achieving
the Commissioner’s overall aim ‘to make Cumbria an
even safer place’. Objectives are monitored through a
performance framework and Public Accountability
Conferences; a public meeting where the
Commissioner holds the Chief Constable to account.
This structure has been in place for a number of years

and works well.

The Commissioner has continued to provide a range of
services for victims and specific services for victims of
sexual violence, domestic violence and perpetrator

programmes.

The Commissioner has well established financial and
governance frameworks necessary to fulfil statutory,
regulatory and best practice requirements, supported
by the relevant professional bodies for local

government and policing. This benefits from
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continuous development to ensure the office

continues to meet the highest standards.

Public consultation and engagement are paramount to
the Commissioner as he is the ‘voice’ for the people of
Cumbria for policing. A wide range of diverse
opportunities are available for the public to speak
directly to the Commissioner, when the Commissioner
is out in the community or by speaking to groups
directly. This is further supported by the public
contacting the Commissioner by email and letter, with
more than 514 people contacting the Commissioner in
this way during 2018/19; a figure that is increasing year
on year. The main themes raised in the year were
Appleby Fair, the level of council tax, police

performance and driving issues.

The Commissioner undertook a successful public
consultation for the increase in the council tax precept
for 2019/20, with more than 2,000 respondents with
71% supporting the proposal. As a result of the public
consultation and the views of the Chief Constable and
the unanimous support of the Police and Crime Panel,
the Commissioner took the decision to increase council

tax precept by £24 for a Band D property.

The Commissioner continues to hold the Chief
Constable to account at bi-monthly Public
Accountability Conferences and weekly 1-2-1s with the
Chief Constable focusing on performance in terms of

crime and anti-social behaviour.

This is further supported by the independent
inspectorate; Her Majesty’s Inspectorate  of
Constabulary and Fire & Rescue Services (HMICFRS),

external and internal auditors to assist in his scrutiny of

governance, finance, risks and internal control. In
conjunction with the Constabulary the Commissioner
also operates a Joint Audit Committee and an Ethics

and Integrity Panel.

The Commissioner’s staff embrace the fast-moving
pace of the Office and this is evident for the work that
is on-going in relation to the driving campaign and
commissioning developments. The Office is well
placed to deal with the new challenges for 2019/20
with responsibility for appeals expected to transfer to
the Commissioner during 2019/20 and further develop

the public facing responsibility of the Commissioner.

Finance Review
2018/19 Grant Settlement and Budget

The Commissioner set a combined net revenue budget
of £98.627m for 2018/19 on 14 February 2018.
Funding of this amount came from the Police Grant
settlement (£58.710m) and income from Council Tax
(£39.917m). The budget increased the Council Tax
precept by 5.42%, taking the Commissioner’s
proportion of the band D equivalent tax to £232.74 per
annum. The effect of the increase is to support the
medium term financial forecast and mitigate the
impact of the real terms reduction in Police Grant
compared to 2017/18. The budget provided funding
for the Chief Constable of £116.902m comprising a
£121.686m expenditure budget to support policing
and an income budget of £4.784m. The
Commissioner’s budget provided £2.245m for
Commissioned Services, to provide funding for

partnership working across the Commissioner’s wider
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community safety, crime reduction and victim support

responsibilities.

The capital budget was set at £11.261m. Capital
expenditure is made up broadly of expenditure on
assets that have a useful life of beyond one year.
Approximately 52% of the programme related to
investment in ICT including the provision of mobile
devices, with the remainder being made up estates
improvements and the cyclical replacement of fleet
vehicles. The budget was funded from capital grants
(£1.1m), direct contributions from revenue (£1.7m)
and capital reserves (£8.5m). The capital budget was
subsequently revised downwards to £8.6m reflecting
the effect of the 2017/18 capital outturn position and

other changes to the planned profile of capital spend.

The table below shows the summary revenue budget
for 2018/19 as set on 14 February 2018, the revised
budget (taking into account budget changes made
during the vyear) and the outturn position. The
presentation below is as the figures are reported
throughout the year in the management accounts. At
the year-end a number of technical accounting
adjustments (required by proper accounting practice)
are made. For this reason, the outturn in the table
below will not reconcile directly to the Summary
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure statement on
page 9. References to the PCC relate to the Police and

Crime Commissioner.

Summary Budget and Outturn

Base Revised (Under)/
Summary Budget Budget Budget Outturn  Overspend
& Outturn 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19

£000s £000s £000s £000s
Constabulary Budget 116,902 115,180 115,397 217
Office of the PCC 723 723 676 (47)
Other PCC budgets 18,909 11,308 11,324 16
Grants/Contributions (29,536) (27,753) (27,743) 10
To/(From) Reserves (8,371) (831) (1,027) (196)
Net Expenditure 98,627 98,627 98,627 0
Government Grants (58,710) (58,710) (58,710) 0
Council Tax (39,917)  (39,917)  (39,917) 0
Total External Funding (98,627) (98,627) (98,627) 0

The Constabulary gross expenditure budget is made up
of funding for employee costs (£107.6m; of which
Police Officers comprise £82.6m), transport costs of
£2.2m and supplies/other costs of £11.9m. The
Commissioner’s budgets comprise the costs of running
his office (£0.723m) and the net position on a range of
other costs. These include estates costs (£4.0m for
premises used by the Constabulary and
Commissioner), Commissioned Services (£1.92m to
deliver the Police and Crime Plan) and budgets to
finance capital expenditure and the costs of technical
accounting adjustments (£4.91m). PCC other budgets
also include the costs of insurance and past pension
costs. Overall a net contribution from reserves of

£1.03m was made in the year to fund expenditure.

In-Year Financial Performance

Revenue Expenditure: The out-turn position for
2018/19 is an overspend of £0.196m. The overall
overspend is made up of an overspend of £0.159m on

the core budgets of the Commissioner and
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Constabulary plus a one off contribution of £0.037m to
a legal provision in relation to ongoing legal cases. The
core underspend equates to 0.2% of the revised net
budget of £99.458m, which is comfortably within the
target for the revenue expenditure to be within 1% of
the budget at out-turn. During 2018/19 the
Constabulary’s pay budget experienced pressure due
to a combination of recruiting the additional 25 fte
officers pledged by the Commissioner as early as
possible, a decision to recruit a further 20 officers over
establishment to insure against possible future
recruitment delays when new police training
arrangements are implemented from January 2020
and a higher than anticipated number of police ill
health retirements, which were required to be funded.
However, this was offset to a large degree by savings
on supplies and services and additional income from
special policing services. In relation to the
Commissioner’s budgets premises costs were slightly
above budget, due, to higher utilities costs and repairs
and maintenance. However, this was offset by savings
in the Office of the Commissioner and additional

investment income.

Budget forecasts during the year indicated that the
Constabulary budget could be overspent by up to
£0.75m. However, in the final quarter of the year a
combination of pro-active work to manage the budget,
lower than expected expenditure on supplies and
services in the latter part of the year and generation of
additional income, meant that the Constabulary came

in just over budget at the year end.

The overall over-spend has been met from a budget
support reserve, which was set aside for this purpose.

Detailed outturn reports which explain the full range of

variances can be found on the budget and finance

section of the Commissioner’s website.

The Commissioner maintains the Police Property Act
Fund. The fund has been accumulated over a period of
time as a result of the disposal of property coming into
the possession of the police under the Police Property
Act 1987 and the Powers of the Criminal Courts Act
1973. Community groups and individuals can submit
applications for funding on a quarterly basis. During
2018/19 awards totaling £61k were made. As at 31
March 2019 the Police Property Act fund balance stood
at £40k.

The 2018/19 Capital Expenditure Outturn amounted to
£5.2m against a revised budget of £8.6m. During the
year construction of a replacement deployment centre
for the Eden area is now well underway. Preparations
to roll out the new ‘SAFE’ Command and Control
system in the control room are now well advanced,
with the system due to go live in June 2019. Further
development of the new crime system ‘Red Sigma’ and
work on delivering mobile working solutions for
officers and staff in roles, which are required to
operate at multiple locations, has continued. Other
capital expenditure has been incurred in the cyclical

replacement of vehicles and ICT equipment.

The variance between actual expenditure and the
revised budget is £3.4m (40%), which is significantly
outside the 8% target for variations in capital
expenditure. Whilst actual performance has fallen
substantially short of target, this has been for a number

of reasons, which were largely outside of the control of
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staff working directly on schemes. The largest
elements of slippage relate to a small delay in
commencing construction of the Eden Deployment
Centre, which began in early 2018/19 and a re-profiling
of planned spend in relation to the control room

futures and business futures ICT projects.

The Financial Statements

This section of the narrative report provides an
explanation of the various parts of the financial
statements alongside a high-level summary and
narrative on the financial position. The aim of the
statements are to demonstrate to the reader the
overall financial position of the Commissioner at the
end of the financial year, together with the cost of the
services provided during the year and the financing of
that expenditure. The reporting format is specifically
designed to meet the requirements of the Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accounting. A series of
notes are provided to assist readers in their
understanding of the statement, whilst the
presentational format is designed to make for easier
reading by those who access the document through
the Commissioner’s website. The key financial

statements are:

=  The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement (CIES)

=  The Movement in Reserves Statement (MiRS)

= The Balance Sheet (BS)

= The Cash Flow Statement (CFS)

= The Police Officer Pension Fund Accounts

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement (CIES) shows the cost of policing and other
services provided in the year and the income from
government grants and council tax that fund those
services. The CIES is shown on page 33 of the full
statement of accounts. An expenditure and income
analysis that sets out what those costs are (e.g.
staffing, transport etc.) is provided in note 6 on page

52.

The table below sets out a summary CIES statement.

Gross Gross Net
Expenditure Income Expenditure
Summary CIZES 2018/19  2018/19  2018/19
£000s £000s £000s
Cost of Police Services 164,268 (8,293) 155,975
Cost of Services 164,268 (8,293) 155,975
Other Operating Expenditure 20,343 (19,690) 653
Financing Costs and Investment 35,539 (3,841) 31,608
Income
Council Tax and Grant Income 0 (104,590) (104,590)
(Surplus)/Deficit on the 220,150  (136,414) 83,736
Provision of Services
Other Com;?rehenswe Income 36,255
and Expenditure
Total Comprehensive Income 119,991

and Expenditure

The statement shows that the net cost of providing
services in the year amounted to £155.975m, which is

predominantly the costs of policing.

In addition to showing the cost of services, the CIES
also sets out net financing costs of £31.698m. The
most significant element of financing costs comprise
pension charges (£31.242m). These charges are
calculated in accordance with generally accepted
accounting practices and do not all need to be funded
in the 2018/19 financial year. Financing costs also
include the costs of borrowing (capital financing).

These costs are extremely low other than those that
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fund the Workington PFI building. This is because the
capital programme is funded internally using cash
reserves to reduce investment risk and reflect the
relatively low interest rates available on investing such
balances. At the end of the financial year £19.347m
(inclusive of PFI contract) of the capital programme is
funded by the use of cash backed internal reserves
rather than borrowing from the open market. At some
point in the future, due to a planned reduction in
reserves, the Commissioner will need to consider

external borrowing.

Showing expenditure and income within this
statement in accordance with generally accepted
accounting practices results in expenditure exceeding
income (a deficit on the provision of services) by
£83.736m. A further accounting adjustment of
£36.255m  expenditure  through the ‘other
comprehensive income and expenditure’ line results in
an overall position on the statement of a deficit of
£119.991m. This is an accounting deficit that is taken
to Unusable Reserves. Page 7 of this summary sets out
the out-turn positon based on the management
accounts, and excluding the technical accounting
entries required for the CI&ES. The management
accounts show an overspend of £0.196m against the

2018/19 budget.

Movement in Reserves Statement

This statement shows the different reserves held by
the Commissioner. These are analysed into ‘Usable
Reserves’ and ‘Unusable Reserves’. Usable reserves
can be used to fund expenditure. They may help to pay

for future costs or reduce the amount we need to raise

in council tax to meet our expenses. Unusable
Reserves are principally technical accounting
adjustments. The Movement in Reserves Statement
shows the opening balance on all reserves at the start
of the year, movements in year and the closing
balance. The Movement in Reserves statement is
shown on pages 35-36 in the full statement of

accounts. The table below sets out a summary

movement in reserves statement.

Summary Movement in Balance Movements Balance

31/03/2018 2018/19 31/03/2019

Reserves
£000s £000s £000s

Police Fund 3,000 0 3,000
Earmarked Revenue Reserves 7,041 1,235 8,276
Earmarked Capital Reserves 12,854 (2,220) 10,634
Capital Receipts 1,449 647 2,096
Capital Grants Unapplied 5,781 363 6,144
Total Usable Reserves 30,125 25 30,150
Unusable Reserves (1,184,603)  (120,125) (1,304,728)
Total Reserves (1,154,478) (120,100) (1,274,578)

Movements in usable reserves for 2018/19 show a net
balance of £0.025m. This is the cumulative positon
recording the amounts we have drawn down from and
contribute to specific (earmarked) reserves to help
fund expenditure during the year. There are separate
accounts to record our receipt and use of income from
the sale of property and government grants for capital
expenditure. Capital receipts amount to £0.647m and
were received following the sale of Ulverston Police
Station and one police house. Capital grants
amounting to £0.939m were received during the year,
of these £0.575m was applied to fund capital
expenditure and the balance will in the future be

applied to finance capital expenditure.
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At the end of the year, the Police Fund at 31 March
2019 stands at £3.0m and provides for unplanned
financial risks. Earmarked revenue reserves are
£8.276m. These reserves provide for a number of
specific  operational  contingencies, one  off
budget/project costs and funding to meet future
liabilities in respect of insurances and the PFI contract.
The most substantial area of reserves at £10.634m are
now those set aside to fund the capital programme, the
majority of which is planned to be fully applied by
2022/23. Further detail on earmarked reserves is
provided within note 8 to the statement of accounts on

pages 57-58.

At the 31 March 2019 we have negative unusable
reserves of £1,305m. Unusable reserves provide a
mechanism through which transactions are entered
into the accounts in accordance with accounting
standards. They also provide the means to manage
differences in the timing and calculation of those
transactions and the actual expenditure or income we
need to charge to our accounts. For example, our
properties are regularly re-valued. When this happens
any increase in their value is shown in a revaluation
reserve. The reserve 'records' the additional income
we may receive when the property is sold, but it is
'unusable’ until we decide to dispose of the property
and achieve a sale. When we sell, the revaluation
reserve will be reduced by any increase in value that
was recorded before sale. The actual income we
receive will be shown in our usable capital receipts
reserve, where it can be used to fund new capital
expenditure. The balance on our unusable reserves

reflects the position following the required accounting

transactions. The cumulative positon for unusable

reserves includes reserves of:

= £47.724m in respect of the revaluation reserve and
capital adjustment account, recording accounting

transactions for our capital assets.

= -£1,350m in respect of negative pensions reserves.
The pensions reserves record accounting
transactions for the Police and Local Government
Pension Schemes. The change in the balance on
these reserves in 2018/19 is negative and is as a
result of changes in actuarial assumptions that

have increased scheme liabilities.

The Balance Sheet

The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the balance
sheet date (31 March 2019) of the Commissioner’s
assets and liabilities. The balance sheet is shown on

page 37 in the full statement of accounts. The table

below sets out a summary balance sheet.

Summary Balance Sheet Balance  Balance
31/03/2018 31/03/2019
£000s £000s
Property, Plant & Equipment 61,494 65,329
Long Term Assets 2,003 2,743
Current Assets 30,993 25,367
Current Liabilities (14,048) (11,761)

Long Term Liabilities (1,234,920) (1,356,256)

Net Liabilities (1,154,478) (1,274,578)
Usable Reserves 30,125 30,150

Unusable Reserves (1,184,603) (1,304,728)

Total Reserves (1,154,478) (1,274,578)

The balance sheets shows property, plant and
equipment assets, which include the Commissioner’s
estate, fleet of vehicles and ICT/communications

equipment, with a value of £65.329m. Of this, land and
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buildings comprise £54.402m. Long terms assets are
comprised of intangible assets £2.743m. Current
assets are principally made up of investments
(£9.034m), debtors (£10.995m) and cash (£5.065m)
and have a total value of £25.367m. Investments are
made in accordance with the Commissioner’s treasury
management strategy and support the management of
reserves and cash flows. Debtors’ balances are
primarily made up of institutional debtors, for example
central government, and prepayments. This means
that the risk of not receiving the debt remains low. The
Commissioner has a good collection record in respect
of debtor invoices raised for services provided. During
2018/19 seven sundry debtor invoices totaling £1,764
were authorised to be written off as not collectable.
The provision for impaired or doubtful debts stands at
£1,828 against the future risk that not all outstanding
invoices will prove to be 100% collectable. The
Commissioner’s debtors include a share of the debtors
recorded by the 6 Cumbrian District Council’s in
respect of council tax. This debt amounts to £2.403m
and is reduced by the Commissioner’s share of their
respective bad debt provisions of £1.057m. See note

14 to the statement of accounts (Page 72).

Balance sheet liabilities are amounts owed by the
Commissioner. They include creditors, PFl debt,
pensions and finance lease liabilities. They are split
between short term (current) and long term liabilities,
the current liabilities being those amounts due to be
paid within 1 year. The most significant element of
current liabilities are short term creditors which total
£11.601m. The combined short and long term liability
on the PFl scheme amount to £4.745m at 31" March

2019. Long term liabilities are the most significant

figure on the balance sheet, showing a balance of
£1,356m (£1,235m in 2017/18). The main element of
this amount is a pension’s deficit of £1,350m (£1,229m
in 2017/18) for the Local Government Pension Scheme
(LGPS) and the Police Pension Scheme. However, this
deficit will be funded over a number of years, with
financial support from Central Government, meaning
that the financial position of the Commissioner

remains healthy.

The Cash Flow Statement

The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash
held in bank accounts and changes in Money Market
funds. Money Market funds are an alternative way of
depositing cash to earn interest. The cash can be
withdrawn from the fund without having to give notice

and they are therefore referred to as cash equivalents.

The statement shows how the Commissioner
generates and uses cash and cash equivalents. Cash
flows are classified within the cash flow statement as
arising from operating activity, investing activity and
financing activity. The statement is shown on pages
38-39 of the full statement of accounts. The table

below sets out a summary cash flow statement.

Cash flows Cash flows
2017/18 2018/19
£000s £000s

Cash & Cash Equivalents 1 April (3,044) (3,774)

Summary Cash Flow

Statement

Net Cash Flow from:

Operating Activity (7,248) (1,430)
Investing Activity 6,393 (3)
Financing Activity 125 142

Cash & Cash Equivalents 31 March,
a (3774)  (5,065)

made up of:
Bank Accounts (2,069) (2,070)
Money Market Funds (1,705) (2,995)
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The table shows a cash inflow of £1.430m from
operating activity. This is the net of our cash income
including government grants, council tax and charges
for services, less how much cash has been paid out, for
example for salaries and goods that have been
purchased. Cash flows from investing activity show an
inflow of £0.003m and primarily represents the net
balance of investment deposits less the amount of cash
received when the investment comes to the end of its
term. Investment activity provides a way to manage
resources that will be used to fund future expenditure,
earning interest on any balances. Investment activity
also includes cash flows from the purchase and sale of
capital assets (e.g. property). Cash flows arising from
financing activities show a net cash outflow of
£0.142m, this being amount of cash used in relation to
financing and borrowing. The Commissioner has no
borrowing other than that which relates to finance
leases and the PFl agreement. An amount of £142k

was paid to reduce those debts during the year.

The Commissioner’s cash flow statement shows an
overall balance of £5.065m, compared to £5.774m in
2017/18, reflecting an increase in cash and cash
equivalents of £1.291m over the year. At the end of
the year £2.995m of the Commissioner’s cash deposits

was held in money market funds and £2.070m in banks.

Police Officer Pension Fund Account

This statement sets out the transactions on the police
officer pension fund account for the year. The
statement records all the contributions that have been
made during the year to the pension fund. These are

primarily contributions from employees and the

Constabulary as employer. Contribution rates are set
nationally by the Home Office. There are also small
amounts of other contributions. These are either
transferred contributions, where members join the
Constabulary and pension scheme during the year,
through transfer from another police force, and
transfer in their existing pension benefits. Other
contributions also include additional payments made
by the employer to cover the cost of ill-health
retirements. The fund records the pensions (benefits)
that are paid out of the fund to its members. Any
difference between the contributions received into the
fund and the amount being paid out is met by

government grant. This means the police pension fund

always balances to nil.

Pension Pension
Summary Police Pension Fund A/C  Fund A/C
Fund 2017/18  2018/19

£000s £000s

Contributions - Employer (8,194) (8,506)
Contributions - Officers (5,185) (5,372)
Contributions - Other (357) (578)
Benefits Payable 35,724 35,878
Other Payments 32 79
Net Amount Payable 22,020 21,501
Contribution from Home Office (20,918) (20,343)
Polce e Cime commissoner .o (A0 (359
Net Amount Payable 0 0

The statement identifies contributions into the fund of
£8.506m from the Constabulary (employer) and
£5.372m from police officers. Employer contribution
rates in 2018/19 were maintained at 21.3%. In total
£35.878m of pensions have been paid out of the fund.
The balance between contributions and those

pensions’ benefits of £21.501m has been funded by
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Home Office Grant of £20.343m and additional
contributions from the Commissioner of £1.158m. The
full police officer pension fund account is shown on
pages 98 to 99 of the financial statements

accompanied with a page of explanatory notes.
Supporting Information to the Financial Statements

The key financial statements are supplemented by an
explanation of the accounting policies used in
preparing the statements. They also contain a
comprehensive set of notes that explain in more detail
a number of entries in the primary financial
statements. A glossary of terms provides an
explanation of the various technical accounting terms
and abbreviations. The statements are published
alongside the Annual Governance Statement for the
Police and Crime Commissioner and the Chief

Constable in accordance with the 2015 Accounts and

Audit (England) Regulations.

Business Review

During 2018/19, the Commissioner has continued a
number of programmes and initiatives working with
the Constabulary and wider partners to deliver the key

priorities within the Police and Crime Plan.

During the year, there has been a significant focus on
developing and commissioning services to support
victims to recover from the impact of a crime and
prevent further abuse or harm. A key service is the
Victim Support core service, whose role is to provide
information, practical and emotional support and
advocacy for victims of all types of crime and domestic
abuse, tailoring it to the individual following a needs

assessment. Overall, service users have reported an

improvement in their experience of the criminal justice
system, in how safe they feel, in reintegration into their
normal life and, particularly, in their health and well-

being.

In May 2018, the Commissioner took on the lead
commissioning role for a new integrated Integrated
Independent Domestic Abuse & Sexual Abuse Crisis
Support Service, working with Cumbria County
Council. This service brings together specialist support
for victims through trained Independent Domestic
Violence and Independent Sexual Violence Advisors,
who conduct a risk assessment with the victim, help
them to develop a safety plan and provide practical and
emotional support and advocacy with other agencies.
This support also forms part of the services available
from The Bridgeway Sexual Assault Service, for which
the Police and Crime Commissioner has continued to
provide the lead commissioning and budget
management role. He also contributes funding towards
and works with providers to develop the forensic-

medical and the therapeutic services.

The Commissioner has also worked with Cumbria
County Council, NHS England and other partners to
develop and commission a combined victim service
under one contract, which aims to ensure victims get
to the right person to support them as soon as possible
and to avoid them having to repeat their story. This
involved the implementation of a new approach to
procuring the service, using the Light Touch Regime of
procurement, to enable the Commissioner to shape a
realistic service, maximising value for money, through

negotiation with bidders.

The Commissioner has continued to fund Remedi, a
not-for-profit company, to provide restorative justice

services across Cumbria. Restorative Justice gives
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victims the chance to meet with or write to the person
who committed the crime so they can explain the
impact it has had upon them and others close to them.
They are able to ask questions and gain answers which
can provide them with a degree of closure. Between
April 2018 and December 2018, Remedi has facilitated
53 victim and offender face to face conferences and 22
indirect interventions (for example, where messages
are passed between victim and perpetrator via a

Remedi worker).

In October 2018, the Commissioner agreed to further
fund the Brathay Trust ‘Be SAVY’ (Be Safe and Value
Yourself) until 2021 following success of a two year
pilot. The project provides young people who are
identified as being vulnerable to sexual exploitation to
undertake a group programme which builds their self-
confidence, develops an understanding of what makes
healthy relationships and how to identify grooming, as

well as giving them healthy coping strategies.

In addition to commissioned services, the Office of the
Police and Crime Commissioner has led a review of the
compliance of criminal justice agencies with the Code
of Practice for Victims of Crime, using the Quality
Assessment Framework it developed during 2017-18.
This is helping to shine a light on the requirements
under the Victims’ Code and focus agencies on
improvements in key areas such as providing the

opportunity to give a Victims’ Personal Statement.

The Commissioner has supported his Victims’ Advocate
who continues to champion the cause for victims, and
importantly, help drive up standards. The Victims’
Advocate has worked with Cumbria County Council to
dip-sample high and medium risk domestic abuse cases
referred into Victim Support to evaluate the quality of

service provided. Also, the Victims’ Advocate

coordinated and chaired quarterly meetings with
victims of antisocial behaviour and crime receiving,
first hand feedback on their personal experience and
acting as a sound board for potential service

developments.

The OPCC has also continued to fund and drive
improvements in programmes to work with
perpetrators of domestic abuse, ‘Turning the Spotlight’
on domestic abuse of adult partners and ‘Step-Up’
which focus on reducing incidents of domestic abuse
by working with perpetrators and victims, providing a
holistic support service for the whole family. The
‘Turning the Spotlight’ programme has received over
700 referrals since its implementation in 2015.
Between April 2018 and March 2019. 111 people
completed the programme. In addition 106 families
participated in the Step-up programme, which aims to
change behaviours and reduce domestic abuse
incidents perpetrated by adolescents and children on
parents and/or carers. Over 6,400 students are now
better informed to recognise the signs of grooming and
the dangers associated with sexual exploitation having
attended the theatre production Chelsea’s Choice in

their school during February and March 2018.

The Petal’s programme, being delivered by Women’s
Community Matters, was launched in April 2017. This
initiative provides an 8-week one to one support
package that works with women who have
experienced and perpetrated abuse and those at risk
of offending. During the two year period 2017-19, 98
women have completed the Petals Programme, of

which 67 had children under 18 years old.

The Commissioner has recently funded The Well
Project, which provides support to ex-offenders and

veterans to take control of their recovery from
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substance abuse, by working on a targeted approach
aimed at reducing offending. Working with the police
and other agencies, this project is providing direct
support right at the heart of Egerton Court (Barrow)
where many of the residents experience problems such
as substance misuse, mental health issues, housing

instability and material poverty.

Continued to fund Get Safe Online project’ offering a
comprehensive programme of online safety and
awareness training over the next three years. Over 750
people are now better informed about online safe
having successfully completed a Get Safe Online
community awareness training session, funded by the
Commissioner. The sessions aim to help protect
participants against fraud, identity theft, viruses and
other security threats, as well as wider safety issues

related to meeting people online.

The Commissioner funded workshops in primary and
secondary schools to educate children and young
people on the impact of getting involved in anti-social
behaviour, gangs, serious and organised crime and
victim awareness. Local Inspectors were involved in
this project to help identify the topics for discussion
aimed at providing specific interventions to address
issues within a policing area. Workshops were
delivered in 16 schools — 8 primary and 8 secondary
schools across the county. Atotal of 1,556 children and

young people attended the workshops.

294 young people aged 16 and 17 years old in South
Cumbria have a better understanding of the
consequences of buying/taking drugs, the different
types of drugs available, and how to manage the
situation if a friend or peer is in trouble after taking
drugs. They have all attended a new psychoactive

substance workshop delivered by Youth Engagement

Services (South Lakeland CIC), funded by the

Commissioner.

Victim Support is commissioned to provide the Turning
the Spotlight programme which works with
perpetrators, victims and their families, using
restorative principles to help service users better
understand and maintain healthy relationships,
reducing incidents of domestic abuse. It is a ground-
breaking initiative developed in Cumbria in 2015, and
is accessible county-wide, either by self-referral or
through referral from partners (such as Children’s
Social Services) or the police. During January 2018 to
December 2018, the project supported 85 perpetrators
of domestic abuse and 68 victims. Children or young

people were involved in 86% of cases.

The Commissioner has recently funded the specialist
project Operation Encompass, following the successful
pilot scheme in 2017. Operation Encompass is
designed to provide early reporting to schools of any
domestic abuse incidents that occurs outside of school
hours and might have an impact on a child attending
the school the following day. It is a partnership
between the Constabulary, Cumbria County Council,
the local Children’s Safeguarding Hubs and schools.
This project is providing early, efficient trauma-
informed support to children of domestic abuse across

the county.

Over 6,000 secondary school students are now more
aware of coercive control and domestic abuse in
teenage intimate relationships, having attended a
Tough Love school performance during November and

December 2018, funded by the Commissioner.

Over 6,400 students are now better informed to

recognise the signs of grooming and the dangers
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associated with sexual exploitation having attended
the theatre production Chelsea’s Choice in their school

during February and March 2018.

Through his commissioning budget he has funded Alter
Ego to deliver ‘Feel the Hate’, a bespoke Cumbrian
educational theatre production delivered in secondary
schools aimed at raising awareness of hate crime, its
impact and where to go for help and advice. The play
was delivered in 50 schools across Cumbria during
September and October 2018. Feedback from schools
has shown that young people now feel better informed
about hate crime and that some schools are continuing

to raise awareness in their lessons.

He continues to invest in a number of schemes through
his Property Fund and Community Fund to provide
diversionary, positive and healthy activities for young
people. This has included funding for sports clubs and
activities during the school holidays. Funded speed
laser devices for use by local communities to deter

people from speeding in their areas.

The Commissioner’s Youth Commission continued to
deliver projects across the county linking in with their
priorities: drink driving, abusive relationships, child
exploitation and new psychoactive substance (e.g.
production of a hard hitting awareness video for drink
and drug driving, working as an advisory group with
the Longtown Community Alcohol Project, developed
a video to raise awareness of child sexual exploitation
(CSE), designed a mobile mural to be displayed at
various events to raise awareness of young people and
healthy relationships. Following the launch of
Cumbria’s Mini Police in 2018, participant schools and

Mini Police Officers have taken part in everything from

road safety patrols, local litter picks, educational talks
on county lines drug dealing, to supporting local events
including the Tour of Britain. Cumbria currently has 26
member schools, with more new intakes planned for
this year. The Commissioner also provided grant

support to a range of youth activities.

The Commissioner has negotiated a collaboration
agreement and governance structure between
Cumbria County Council, Cumbria Fire & Rescue
Service, the Constabulary and the North West
Ambulance Service to develop work streams around
Blue Light Collaboration. The Commissioner chairs the
Blue Light Collaboration Executive Leaders Board,

which oversees the work.

To date, a number of work streams have been

undertaken:

e Asixmonth trial is currently ongoing around shared
tasking and co-ordination between Cumbria
Rescue & Fire Service and the Constabulary to co-

ordinate activity on a daily and monthly basis.

e Scoped and evaluated opportunities around a Joint
Command and Control Centre for Cumbria,
concluding that this is not a viable option at the

moment.

e The Cumbria Fire & Rescue Service are now
integrated within the Local Focus Hubs across the

county.

e Plans are in place to enable the Constabulary and
North West Ambulance Service to initially access
up to seven Cumbria Fire & Rescue Service

premises in rural areas across the county. This will
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provide a rural base for these agencies, reducing
the need to travel back to their initial deployment

centre.

° Ongoing trial of two Joint Emergency Services
Officers (JESO), one in the south of the county and
one in the west. This role fulfils the function of a
PSCO and an on call fire fighter. This is currently

been evaluated.

e  Three Joint Incident Command Unit Vehicles are
being utilised across the county at public events
and can be used for major incidents. An evaluation
is currently been undertaken to identify the

benefits of these.

The Youth Commission continues to deliver projects
across the county linking in with their priorities: drink
driving, abusive relationships, child exploitation and
new psychoactive substance. Some of the work

includes:

e  The production of a hard hitting awareness video
for drink and drug driving. The release of the video
coincided with the Commissioner drink driving

campaign in December 2018.

. Developed a video to raise awareness of child
sexual exploitation (CSE) which will be launched in
time for the national CSE awareness day on the 18"

March 2019.

. Developed a mobile mural to be displayed at
various events to raise awareness of young people
and healthy relationships. This is currently being

displayed at the Forum in Barrow.

e  Working as an advisory group with the Longtown
Community Alcohol Project as the voice of young

people in rural and isolated areas.

Following the launch of Cumbria’s Mini Police in 2018,
participant schools and Mini Police Officers have taken
part in everything from road safety patrols, local litter
picks, educational talks on county lines drug dealing to
supporting local events, including the Tour of Britain.
Cumbria currently has 26 member schools, with new
intakes planned for this year. The Police Cadets
scheme is providing opportunities for young people to
be involved in policing, giving them a chance to be
heard and inspiring them to participate positively in

their communities.

The Commissioner and Chief Constable agreed the
budget following public consultation. The additional

revenue contributed to funding:

+» 25 additional police officers within the Local Focus
Hubs, providing a visible presence across the six

districts, tackling issues that are important.

«* Maintaining Police Community Support Officers
(PCSOs) guaranteeing the delivery of a strong pro-

active visible presence in the community.

% Increasing the number of armed officers available to
protect and respond to potential terror threats or

dangerous individuals.

«» Improving the protection of children from abuse,

especially online grooming and exploitation.
Greater protection against online crime and fraud.

During the year, the Commissioner launched a 12
month campaign to help keep Cumbria’s road safer, in
response to what local residents tell them are one of
their main concerns within their community.
Throughout this campaign, the Commissioner will be

working with partners and local communities to
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highlight the many aspects of safer driving, focusing on

a different theme each month.

Our key events diary sets out the significant activities

that have shaped our work over the year, proving an

overview of what we have delivered and achieved.

Key Events

April 2018

Independent Custody Visitors attend the ICV
Annual Conference.

Chelsea’s Choice returns to Cumbria to raise
awareness of child sexual exploitation.

May 2018

Get Safe Online Event is held in Workington
Town Centre to raise awareness of online safety.

PCC provides funding for speed watch laser
devices to be used by local communities to
tackle speeding in their area.

Held three public surgeries across Cumbria to
listen to the views of local communities.

3 projects awarded funding from the PCCs
Community Fund and 13 from the Property
Fund.

PCC attends attestation events across the
county as part of the Volunteer Police Cadet
Scheme.

In partnership with Cumbria Constabulary and
through Safer Cumbria, a Serious Organised
Crime Event was held to brief partners on the
threats to Cumbria posed by serious and
organised crime.

The new Independent Domestic and Sexual
Abuse Crisis Support Service, commissioned by
the PCC and Cumbria County Council,
commenced on 1°* May.

PCC joins youngsters and their coaches in a free
sports session at Petteril Bank, Carlisle to see
first-hand how his Community fund award to
Greenwich Leisure is progressing.

Work commenced on the new Eden Police
Deployment Centre.

PCC thanks the public of Cumbria for their
continued support having finished his second
year in office.

PCC joins Cumbria Police Mobile Support Group
out on patrol in the north of the county.

PCC sponsors The Diverse Cumbria Awards
which celebrates equality and diversity across
Cumbria.

PCC attends the launch of the Cinnamon
Network aimed at helping vulnerable people
within Cumbria.

PCC attends launch of the Triple A project ‘All
About Autism’ the training film for police officer
aims to raise awareness and promote an
understanding of autism.

Chelsea’s Choice returns to Cumbria to raise
awareness of child sexual exploitation.

July 2018

PCC hosts a visit from the Victims Commissioner,
Baroness Newlove to show how victims of crime
are supported in Cumbria.

PCC holds 3 public surgeries across Cumbria.
PCC attends the Citizen’s in Policing Awards
Ceremony.

PCC attends Longtown Community Centre with
the local policing team to discuss local issues
with residents.

PCC attended Mini Police Sports Day in support
of the Constabulary’s chosen charity JIGSAW.
PCC attends the Constabulary’s launch of
Bodyworn Video Cameras.

PCC attends Kendal Calling to see first-hand
police dogs in action.

Recruitment begins for additional volunteers for
PCC’s Independent Custody Visitor Scheme

PCC announces the winners of the Community
Awards for North, South and West Cumbiria.

August 2018

PCC runs campaign to attract volunteers to join
the Independent Custody Visitor Scheme.

June 2018

The Commissioner attends the Cumberland
Show.

September 2018

PCC attends Cumbria Pride Event in Carlisle.
PCC attends Barrow Emergency Services Open
Day.
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The Commissioner joins representatives from
Cumbria Constabulary and the Security Industry
Authority (SIA) at a conference to help promote
ways to safeguard people, especially the
vulnerable, who are out enjoying the night time
economy in Cumbria.

PCC launches Innovation Programme aimed at
supporting vulnerable young men.

PCC takes part in covert operation to tackle retail
crime in Carlisle.

PCC joins a training session at Aspatria Hornets
Junior Rugby Club to see how training
equipment purchased through his Property
Fund is being used.

6 projects are awarded funding from the PCC
Property Fund.

PCC runs campaign to attract volunteers to join
the Independent Custody Visitor Scheme.

The Commissioner attends the Westmorland
Show

5 projects are awarded funding from the PCC
Property Fund for September 2017

PCC in partnership with Safer Cumbria held
Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence Support
Service consultation.

PCC reduces staff costs by combining existing
roles of two senior members of staff to cover
Chief Executive Post on a permanent basis.

November 2018

6 projects are awarded funding from the PCC
Property Fund and 4 projects from the
Community Fund.

PCC attends the Neighbourhood Watch AGM.
PCC holds 4 public surgeries across Cumbria.
PCC supports National Anti-Bullying Week,
attending presentations at primary schools to
raise awareness.

PCC attends Cumbria Youth Commission’s
Drink/Drug Driving Awareness Video premiere.
PCC attends the Cumbria Community Heroes
Awards.

December 2018

PCC and Chief Constable launch a year-long
campaign to help keep Cumbria’s roads safer. In
December, the campaign focused on the
dangers of driving whilst under the influence of
drink or drugs.

PCC joins officers on patrol in Carlisle on Festive
Friday.

5 Projects are awarded funding from the PCC’s
Property Fund for December 2018.

October 2018

PCC supports world Mental Health Day.

PCC launches his second Annual Report.

PCC attends the launch of the Cumbria Domestic
Abuse Champions Network.

PCC extents his support of the Brathay Trust ‘Be
SAVY’ project to help keep safe young people at
risk of sexual exploitation.

PCC attends the North West Independent
Custody Visitor Scheme conference.

As part of the Hate Crime Awareness Week, the
PCC attends the performance of ‘Feel the Hate’
at Queen Katherine’s Secondary School, Kendal.
PCC officially opens Hospice at Home Wigton
Shop during National Hospice Care Week.

PCC holds 2 public surgeries across Cumbria.
PCC funds specialist project, Operation
Encompass, designed to provide early reporting
to schools of any domestic abuse incidents that
occur outside of school hours and may impact on
a child attending school the following day.

January 2019

PCC launches consultation on Council Tax
Precept.
Police and Crime Panel voted unanimously to
support the Commissioner’s Council Tax
proposal.

February 2019

PCC agrees Police Budget for 2019/20.
PCC attends Mencap’s ‘Mate Hate’ Film Launch
during Hate Crime week.

PCC holds surgery at Sellafield.

PCC joins MENCAP to celebrate their 50th
Anniversary.

March 2019

12 projects are awarded funding from the PCCs
Property Fund.

PCC attends the Freedom Parade in Kendal.

PCC holds live chat on Facebook regarding Child
Sexual Exploitation.

PCC attends Get Safe Online Business Event in
Kendal.

PCC holds a public surgery in Kendal.

PCC holds Independent Custody Visitors Annual
Conference.
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MENCAP launches ‘Mate Crime’ DVD funded by
PCC the DVD aims to raise awareness of this type
of hate crime.

7 Projects are awarded funding from the PCCs
Property Fund for March 2018.

April 2019

PCC attends Livestock Awareness Event in
Buttermere.

PCC holds a surgery for students at West Lakes
College.

May 2019

PCC holds a Vulnerability Symposium at Newton
Rigg College to raise awareness amongst
students of the dangers associated with county
lines and other forms of exploitation (such as
sexual exploitation and human trafficking).
PCC supports the Diverse Cumbria Awards.

Performance Report

We measure our performance across a number of key

themes reflecting the priorities in the Police and Crime

Plan. These are Effective Policing, Community Safety,

Criminal Justice, Customer/Victim Satisfaction and

Finance & Value for Money.

Effective Policing

Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of Constabulary and

Fire & Rescue Services (HMICFRS) Police
Effectiveness Efficiency and Legitimacy (PEEL)
Inspections: The PEEL Inspections judge the
efficiency, effectiveness and legitimacy of the
Constabulary in keeping people safe and reducing
crime. For 2018/19 HMICFRS determined that the
Cumbria Constabulary was ‘good’ in all aspects of
effectiveness, efficiency and legitimacy. The Chief
Constable reports to the Police and Crime

Commissioner on how the Constabulary will tackle

any areas requiring improvement and her response
to HMICFRS recommendations.

In addition, the Constabulary was graded as
‘Outstanding’ in a thematic HMICFRS inspection of
Crime Data Integrity. Cumbria is only the second
force to achieve this rating on the first inspection.
For 2018/19 overall crime increased by 29%, which
equates to an increase of 8,268 crimes over the 12
month period to 31st March 2019. The increase is
largely attributable to improved crime reporting.
Violence against the person offences have
increased by 53% over the year. Whilst almost all
categories of violent crime showed an increase, the
largest increases were seen in the less serious
violence without injury category. Again, improved
standards of crime reporting and recording are the

principal reasons for the increase.

Community Safety

Antisocial behaviour has continued to fall, and has
seen a 19% reduction compared to the same
period last year.

Hate crimes and incidents continue to be closely
monitored. During 2018/19, the number of
incidents rose by 26%, which equates to 110
crimes. The Constabulary and partners continue to
work to encourage reporting of hate crime. Based
on the latest data, in comparison with other forces,
Cumbria has one of the lowest levels of hate crimes
both nationally and in the North West region.
Work has also targeted increased reporting for
sexual and domestic violence. During the year
reported incidents of domestic abuse have

increased by 9.6% and there has been a 26%

increase in reported sexual offences.
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Criminal Justice

All recorded offences are assigned an outcome
based on a national framework for crime. Crime
outcomes are classed as positive where the
offender is either charged or summonsed, receives
an out of court disposal or where the Crown
Prosecution Service (CPS) or police determine it is
not in the public interest to prosecute. In all cases
the crime outcome represents positive police
activity in detecting the crime. Positive crime
outcome performance is 19% for 2018/19.

Cumbria conviction rates for Magistrates Court
cases for the quarter to September 2018 equated
to 92%, which is ranked 1st nationally amongst 42
forces. Crown Court convictions for the same
period equated to 86%, Cumbria is ranked 4th out

of 42 forces.

Customer and Victim Satisfaction

Performance in customer and victim satisfaction is
measured through regular independent surveys
following police contact. This is supplemented by
the process for police complaints that includes
independent sampling of complaint files and
scrutiny of local to national comparatives against
complaints upheld.

The latest satisfaction figures for the overall
service experience (which includes criteria such as
‘making contact’, ‘action taken’, treatment by
staff’) remain high at 80.6%.

When allegations are made against the police,
those resolved

locally perform well against

national comparative timescales.

Finance & Value for Money

We measure our performance against targets for
achieving financial outturn within a percentage of
the net budget. For 2018/19 this was set at 1% for
the revenue budget and 8% for the capital budget.
Actual performance for revenue (excluding the one
off contribution to provisions) was 0.2%, achieving
well within the target.

Capital outturn was 40% below budget, falling
significantly outside target. Whilst this was a
disappointing result, the year-end positon was
expected and was largely attributable to milestone
payments on large projects falling into early in the
following year, rather than signalling a significant
delay in delivering the programme. Stretch targets
will continue to be set for capital expenditure going
forward as a recognised area for performance
improvement.

In previous years the budget for the Commissioner
and Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner
was benchmarked against HMIC Value for Money
profiles. Following the inclusion of fire and rescue
services under the remit of HMIC, costs for police
and crime commissioners are no longer included in
the VFM comparators. It has therefore not been
possible to undertake a Value for Money analysis
for the Office of the Police and Crime
Commissioner for 2018/19.

Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of Constabulary and
Fire & Rescue Services (HMICFRS) 2018/19 PEEL
inspection assessed the Constabulary as good in
respect of efficiency.

Outcomes against wider performance measures

that indicate the effectiveness of activity and

interventions are strong against the priority areas
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of keeping crime at low levels, reducing anti-social
behaviour, bringing criminals to justice and
increasing reporting of hate crime and domestic
and sexual abuse.

= Collectively, these indicators provide assurance of
Value for Money in respect of the 2018/19 financial

year.

The Future Outlook

Following his election in 2016, Peter McCall the Police
and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria launched his
Police and Crime Plan covering the period to 2020. The
Plan’s key theme is ‘Making Cumbria Even Safer’ and
sets the strategic direction for policing and wider aims
for enhancing community safety, criminal justice and

supporting victims.

The overall financial position remains strong, which is
reflected in the Medium Term Financial Forecast,
which sets out the revenue budget position until
2022/23 and a capital programme, which is fully
funded over the same period and will support delivery
of the 2016-2020 Police and Crime Plan. The current
financial positon has primarily arisen as a result of
positive action on behalf of the Constabulary to reduce
costs in the context of reductions in government
funding since 2010. This has enabled reserves to be
maintained at a level that balances financial resilience

and supports continued investment.

The Medium Term Financial Strategy and 2019/20
budget was approved in the context of the
Government providing additional funding to meet
increased police pension contributions and affording

Commissioners’ increased flexibility to raise council

tax. However, this is accompanied by increasing cost
pressures including national training and ICT initiatives

and the economic uncertainty regarding Brexit.

Against this background the 2019/20 budget resources
an establishment of 1165 Police Officers, an increase of
20 and maintenance of the establishments for Police
Community Support Officers and Police Staff. The
budget also supports smaller investments in cyber
crime, victims safeguarding, staff welfare and
engagement. The budget provides £130m funding for
the Chief Constable to deliver policing for Cumbria.
The longer term 10 year capital programme commits

to £63.2m investment across the estate, fleet and ICT.

Whilst the position is financially resilient in the short
term, the future outlook is uncertain. Based on the
MTFF assumptions, savings will need to be delivered
from 2020/21 to balance the budget forecast, which
will rise to £4.1m by 2022/2023. There are a number of
financial risks in relation to the adequacy and
sustainability of funding, the cost of national policing
programmes and the potential review of the police

funding formula.

In light of the financial outlook above and in the
context of the MTFF and savings plans, the
Commissioner and the Joint Chief Finance Officer have
reviewed the going concern position of the PCC/Group
and have concluded that it is appropriate to produce

the Commissioner’s accounts on a going concern basis.
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Acknowledgements In closing, it is appropriate to acknowledge the
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Joint Chief Finance Officer

The accounts present a true and fair view of the position of the Police and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria Single
Entity and Group Accounts as at 31 March 2019 and its income and expenditure for the year there ended.
Signature removed for publication on website Signature removed for publication on website
Roger Marshall CPFA Peter McCall
Joint Chief Finance Officer Police and Crime Commissioner
Date: 25 July 2019 Date: 25 July 2019
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Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts

1 The Commissioner’s Responsibilities
The Police and Crime Commissioner (The Commissioner/PCC) is the recipient of funding relating to
policing and crime reduction and has statutory responsibility for the Police Fund. The Commissioner
is required to:
. make arrangements for the proper administration of his financial affairs and to secure that one
of his officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In this organisation,

that officer is the Joint Chief Finance Officer (CFO).

. manage his affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and safeguard its
assets.

° approve the Statement of Accounts including annexes to the Statement of Accounts.

2 The Chief Constable’s Responsibilities
The Chief Constable (the CC) is accountable to the Police and Crime Commissioner for the management
of resources and expenditure by the police force. All funding for the Chief Constable comes from the
Police and Crime Commissioner. The Chief Constable is required to:
° make arrangements for the proper administration of her financial affairs and to secure that one
of her officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In this organisation,

that officer is the Joint Chief Finance Officer (CFO).

) manage her affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and safeguard its
assets.

° approve the Statement of Accounts including annexes to the Statement of Accounts.

3 The Joint Chief Finance Officer's Responsibilities
The Joint Chief Finance Officer is responsible for the preparation of the Commissioner’s, Chief
Constable’s and Group Statement of Accounts in accordance with proper practices as set out in the
CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code).
In preparing this Statement of Account, the CFO has:
° selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently;

° made judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

. complied with the local authority code.
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The CFO has also:

. kept proper accounting records, which were up to date

. taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The CFO should sign and date the Statement of Accounts, stating that it presents a true and fair view

of the financial position of the organisation at the reporting date and its income and expenditure for
the year ended 31 March 2019.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

o Grant Thornton

Independent auditor’s report to the Police and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of the Police and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria (the ‘Police and Crime
Commissioner’) and its subsidiary the Chief Constable for Cumbria Constabulary (the ‘group’) for the year ended 31
March 2019 which comprise the, the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement — Group, the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement — PCC, Movement in Reserves Statement — Group, Movement in Reserves
Statement — PCC, the Balance Sheet — PCC & Group, the Cash Flow Statement — PCC & Group and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and Annexes A, B, C and D and include the Police
Officer Pension Fund Account comprising the Police Officer Pension Fund Account, Pension Fund Net assets and
Liabilities and the notes to financial statements. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their
preparation is applicable law and the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority accounting in the United
Kingdom 2018/19.

In our opinion, the financial statements:

e give a true and fair view of the financial position of the group and of the Police and Crime Commissioner as at 31
March 2019 and of the group’s expenditure and income and the Police and Crime Commissioner’s expenditure and
income for the year then ended;

e have been prepared properly in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority accounting
in the United Kingdom 2018/19; and

e have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the group and the Police and Crime Commissioner
in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK,
including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to report
to you where:

e the Joint Chief Finance Officer’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial
statements is not appropriate; or

e the Joint Chief Finance Officer has not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material
uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the group’s or the Police and Crime Commissioner’s ability
to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the
date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.
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Other information

The Joint Chief Finance Officer is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Statement of Accounts, Joint Chief Finance Officer Narrative Report and Annex D - Annual
Governance Statement, other than the Police and Crime Commissioner and group financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to
the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge of the group and the Police and Crime Commissioner obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required
to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the
other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Other information we are required to report on by exception under the Code of Audit Practice

Under the Code of Audit Practice published by the National Audit Office on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor
General (the Code of Audit Practice) we are required to consider whether the Annual Governance Statement does not
comply with the ‘Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: Framework (2016)" published by CIPFA and
SOLACE or is misleading or inconsistent with the information of which we are aware from our audit. We are not
required to consider whether the Annual Governance Statement addresses all risks and controls or that risks are
satisfactorily addressed by internal controls.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matter required by the Code of Audit Practice

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit of the financial statements and our knowledge
of the Police and Crime Commissioner gained through our work in relation to the Police and Crime Commissioner’s
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, the other information
published together with the financial statements in the Statement of Accounts, the Joint Chief Finance Officer
Narrative Report and Annex D - Annual Governance Statement for the financial year for which the financial statements
are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Under the Code of Audit Practice, we are required to report to you if:

e we issue a reportin the publicinterest under section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the course
of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or

e we make a written recommendation to the Police and Crime Commissioner under section 24 of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or

e we make an application to the court for a declaration that an item of account is contrary to law under Section 28
of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or;

e we issue an advisory notice under Section 29 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at
the conclusion of the audit; or

e we make an application for judicial review under Section 31 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, in the
course of, or at the conclusion of the audit.

We have nothing to report in respect of the above matters.
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Responsibilities of the Police and Crime Commissioner and the Joint Chief Finance Officer for the financial
statements

As explained more fully in the Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts, the Police and Crime Commissioner is
required to make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that one of its
officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. That officer is the Joint Chief Finance Officer. The
Joint Chief Finance Officer is responsible for the preparation of the Statement of Accounts, which includes the financial
statements, in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority
accounting in the United Kingdom 2018/19, for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal
control as the Chief Financial Officer determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Joint Chief Finance Officer is responsible for assessing the group’s and the
Police and Crime Commissioner’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless there is an intention by government that the
services provided by the group or the Police and Crime Commissioner will no longer be provided.

The Police and Crime Commissioner is Those Charged with Governance. Those charged with governance are
responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council’s website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s
report.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements - Conclusion on the Police and Crime Commissioner’s
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources

Conclusion

On the basis of our work, having regard to the guidance on the specified criterion issued by the Comptroller and
Auditor General in November 2017, we are satisfied that the Police and Crime Commissioner put in place proper
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March
2019.

Responsibilities of the Police and Crime Commissioner

The Police and Crime Commissioner is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for securing economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, to ensure proper stewardship and governance, and to review
regularly the adequacy and effectiveness of these arrangements.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the review of the Police and Crime Commissioner’s arrangements for securing
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources

We are required under Section 20(1)(c) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to be satisfied that the Police
and Crime Commissioner has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use
of resources. We are not required to consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects of the Police and Crime
Commissioner's arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources are operating
effectively.

29| Page
Police and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria — Statement of Accounts 2018/19


http://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities

Independent Auditor’s Report

We have undertaken our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having regard to the guidance on the
specified criterion issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General in November 2017, as to whether in all significant
respects the Police and Crime Commissioner had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly informed decisions
and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people. The Comptroller
and Auditor General determined this criterion as that necessary for us to consider under the Code of Audit Practice in
satisfying ourselves whether the Police and Crime Commissioner put in place proper arrangements for securing
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2019.

We planned our work in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice. Based on our risk assessment, we undertook such
work as we considered necessary to be satisfied that the Police and Crime Commissioner has put in place proper
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements - Certificate

We certify that we have completed the audit of the financial statements of the Police and Crime Commissioner for
Cumbia in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and the Code of Audit
Practice.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Police and Crime Commissioner, as a body, in accordance with Part 5 of the Local
Audit and Accountability Act 2014 [and as set out in paragraph 43 of the Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and
Audited Bodies published by Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited]. Our audit work has been undertaken so that
we might state to the Police and Crime Commissioner those matters we are required to state to the Police and Crime
Commissioner in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept
or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Police and Crime Commissioner as a body, for our audit work, for
this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Robin Bater
Robin Baker

for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP, Local Auditor
Liverpool
31 July 2019

30| Page
Police and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria — Statement of Accounts 2018/19



Core Financial Statements

The Statement of Accounts includes four primary or core financial statements:

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement - This statement summarises the resources that have
been generated and consumed in providing policing and crime reduction services during the year. It includes
all day to day expenses and related income on an accruals basis, as well as transactions measuring the value
of fixed assets actually consumed and the real projected value of retirement benefits earned by employees in

the year.

The expenditure in the statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance
with generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the amount to be funded from taxation. Authorities
raise taxation to cover expenditure in accordance with regulations; this may be different from the accounting

cost. The taxation position is shown in the movement in reserves statement.

Due to the size of the statements, the positions for the Group and the PCC are shown in separate tables.

Movement in Reserves Statement - This statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves
held by the Commissioner, analysed into ‘Usable Reserves’ (i.e. those that can be applied to fund expenditure
or reduce taxation) and other ‘Unusable Reserves’. The Surplus (or Deficit) on the Provision of Services line
shows the true economic cost of providing the Commissioner’s services, more details of which are shown in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. These are different from the statutory amounts
required to be charged to the Police Fund Balance for Council Tax setting purposes. The Net Increase/Decrease
before Transfers to Earmarked Reserves line shows the statutory Police Fund Balance before any discretionary

transfers to or from earmarked reserves undertaken by the Commissioner.

Due to the size of the statements, the positions for the Group and the PCC are shown in separate tables, the

figures for 2018/19 and the comparators for 2017/18 are also shown in separate tables.
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e Balance Sheet — This statement shows the value as at the balance sheet date of the assets and liabilities
recognised by the Commissioner. The net assets (assets less liabilities) are matched by the reserves held by

the Commissioner. Reserves are reported in two categories.

The first category of reserves are usable reserves, i.e. those reserves that the Commissioner may use to
provide services, subject to the need to maintain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory limitations on
their use (for example the capital receipts reserve that may only be used to fund capital expenditure or repay

debt).

The second category of reserves are unusable reserves and relate to those that the Commissioner is not able
to use to provide services. This category of reserves includes reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses
(for example the revaluation reserve), where amounts would only become available to provide services if the
assets are sold; and reserves that hold timing differences shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement line

‘Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations’.

The balance sheet for the Group and PCC are shown side by side and include both 2018/19 figures and 2017/18

comparators.

e (Cash Flow Statement - This statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Commissioner
during the reporting period. The statement shows how the Commissioner generates and uses cash and cash
equivalents by classifying cash flows as operating, investing and financing activities. The amount of net cash
flows arising from operating activities is a key indicator of the extent to which the operations of the
Commissioner are funded by way of taxation and grant income or from the recipients of services. Investing
activities represent the extent to which cash outflows have been generated from resources which are intended
to contribute to the Commissioner’s future service delivery. Cash flows arising from financing activities are

useful in predicting claims on future cash flows by providers of capital (i.e. borrowing).

The cash flow statement for the Group and PCC are shown side by side and include both 2018/19 figures and
2017/18 comparators.
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Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement — Group

Group Group Group Group Group Group
h . d 2017/18 2017/18 2017/18 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19
Compre ensive Income an Gross Gross \[]4 Gross Gross Net
Expenditure Statement (Group) Expenditure Income  Expenditure Expenditure Income  Expenditure
Notes £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
| | | |
Cost of Policing and Crime Services . # | 104646 (9,935  94,711;  164,268.  (8,293) 155975
Cost of Policing and Crime Services 104,646,  (9,935); 94,711 164,268 (8,293) 155,975
OtheroveratmsExpend'ture ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, B R
,,,,,,,,, (Gain)/loss on disposal of non currentassets ' 653 653
Transfer to Pension Fund/Pension Top Up Grant (20 343)? - -0
(19,690) 653

inancing and Investment Income and Expenditure

nterest payable on PFI unitary payments

:Net Interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset) { AnnexC ;
i | (Pg115) |

Investment |nterest income ) ) ) A;_AOL_AN@O)E ) (96) de_ﬂiyis)? Wm_iljt@
' S 38051 (3,515) 34536, 35539, (_?r_f‘_‘_‘_‘_!)_’ PaL6os
Taxatlon and Non-Specific Grant Income - - |

Recognlsed capital grants and contrlbutlons 0: :(939)’ (939)
: 03)5i

‘Formula Funding a7 ol (30391 (30391) 0. (30, 391)5  (30,391)]
Home Office Police Grant i 27 0 (283200 (28320 0  (28320)  (28320)
\PFI Grant B B B - 27 .0 (687);  (687): O (687) (687)
___________ : 0 (101824) (101,820) 0 (104590) ~ (104,590)

163,614 (135,9_31)g 27,683

Surplus or deficit on revaluation of available for sale (7)
ifinancial assets : :

tuarlal (gains) / losses on pension assets / liabilities

- Matchmg the entry to the pensions reserve © Annex C
i (Pg115)

0ther Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

# A more detailed analysis of the figures that make up the “Cost of Policing and Crime Services” can be found in the

Expenditure and Funding Analysis (Note 5) and in the Expenditure and Income Analysed by Nature note (Note 6).
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Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement — PCC

PCC PCC PCC PCC PCC PCC

. 2017/18 2017/18 2017/18 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19
Comprehenswe Income and Gross Gross Net Gross Gross Net

Expenditure Statement (PCC) Expenditure Income Expenditure Expenditure Income  Expenditure

Notes £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
{ : : | : i : !
Cost of Pollcmg and Crlme Serwces - - i 134120 (17,980):  (4,568): ~11,662: (16,807)  (5,145)
Funding Provided by PCCto CC ! ; 105,851 | 0: 105,851 110,897 0/ 110,897
Cost of Pollcmg and Crime Services 119,263 | ' 101,283 5 (16,807) 105,752

|

!
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 1,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,
her Operating Expenditure ) B E e L ) : ) )
E(Gam)/loss on disposal of non current assets ] ' 0 2600 260 ) 0: 653, 653
'Transfer to Pension Fund/Pensron Top Up. Grant ) : (20,343)

Interest payable on PFl unitary payments

Net Interest on the net defined benefit I|ab|||ty (asset) A""exc )
i i (Pg116) !

Irivestme:utintere:stincorﬁe (90) - (96) - 0 -(146)) - (146)

Taxatlon and Non-Specific Grant Income

Recognlsed capital grants and contributions (3"64)5 ~(364); - 0: (939)’ - (939)
Income from Council Tax (37,212);  (37,212) B 0: (39,403)]  (39,403)

(4,850)/ (4,850)

Council Tax Grant (Freeze & Support)

Home Office PoliceGrant | 27
{PFI Grant

I (101,824)  (101,824) (104,590)  (104,590)
E(Surplus)or:l:)eficite:n Provision of Services 1 140,927 (140,648) 279 143,636: (141,337) 2,299

Surplus or Defcnt on | revaluatlon of Property, Plant and Equlpment Assetswmmm"
L9 i

{Revaluation gains
Revaluatlon Iosses (chargeable to revaluatlon reserve)

| (Pg116) |

b'tiié'r"éarﬁb'r'éiiéHs](:é’i}i'c'a'rﬁé"éﬁ&'éiﬁéﬁ&i{&'ré """""""""" 1 @) - (3783
Tota_! Compr__ehensiv_e Incom_e and E)_(_penditu_re B B I B : (105) B B i (1,484)
] ] : : g

# A more detailed analysis of the figures that make up the “Cost of Policing and Crime Services” can be found in the

Expenditure and Funding Analysis (Note 5) and in the Expenditure and Income Analysed by Nature note (Note 6).
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Movement in Reserves Statement - Group

The figures for the group in 2018/19 are provided in the table below:

. _— a
Movement in Reserves State £ ® o, " o 2 g g co .~ 85, . = =
o =] g 2 2 == gScar S s 9 3] ol N
(Group) X 2R =2 25 a5 gc2s £5¢ 52 a =
B Sz g 2§ 25 F4232 858 <£3 5
. =3 wZ Zp
Figures for 2018/19 = 2 & 2 £3 53 gz S&o 2 5 g =
o g o s £ £ cS®35 wbt g v 0 ) ]
© T 25 Q= oS £E ws © & = o < > -
& £ o g o o £ 58 ¢5¢@ G e o o
e ] El g g = & 2383 oo £ c E S g
= = E < c o = o = g Q
s 23 = £ 5 o 5859 <55 £ 5 g g
K] T 5a 8¢ © g 2T gF L g E’ o [} K £
o
£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
Usable Reserves
Police Fund Account - 3,000 0 (83,736) 0 (83,736) 82,751 (985) 985 0 3,000
Earmarked Revenue Reserves 8 7,041 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,235 1,235 8,276
Earmarked Capital Reserves 8 12,854 0 0 0 0 0 0 (2,220) (2,220) 10,634
Capital Receipts Reserve 19 1,449 0 0 0 0 647 647 0 647 2,096
Capital Grants Unapplied 19 5,781 0 0 0 0 363 363 0 363 6,144
Total Usable Reserves 30,125 0 (83,736) 0 (83,736) 83,761 25 0 25 30,150
L ble Reserves
Revaluation Reserve 20a 9,452 0 0 3,936 3,936 (187) 3,749 0 3,749 13,201
Capital Adjustment Account 20b 37,026 0 0 0 0 (1,503) (1,503) 0 (1,503) 35,523
Police Pensions Reserve 20e (1,187,670) 0 0 (33,050) (33,050) (75,580) (108,630) 0 (108,630)  (1,296,300)
LGPS Pensions Reserve 20e (41,107) (109) 0 (7,152) (7,152) (5,670) (12,822) 0 (12,822) (54,038)
Collection Fund Adjustment Account 20c 463 0 0 0 0 (513) (513) 0 (513) (50)
/Accumulated Absences Account 20d (2,756) 0 0 0 0 (308) (308) 0 (308) (3,064)
Available for Sale Financial Instruments Reserve 20f (11) 0 0 11 11 0 11 11 0|
Total L ble Reserves (1,184,603) (109) 0 (36,255) (36,255) (83,761) (120,016) 0 (120,016)  (1,304,728)
Total Reserves (1,154,478) (109) (83,736) (36,255) (119,991) 0 (119,991) 0 (119,991). (1,274,578)

The comparative figures for the group in 2017/18 are provided in the table below:

Movement in Reserves Statement e, o 0 2 = BE . c g
= u = = 2 [T =] s 0 )
Figures for 2017/18 < i g8 g% 284S 5L St g =
= B < E g ] §£25 22 ] = by
3 >3 K I EE®E 8% 2% 3 %
: = gt R Zge% gegE SE ; 2
© 5 3 & ° 39 gL 88 =3 g 5
-] a £ £ z 3 = a
£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
Usable Reserves
Police Fund Account - 3,000 (27,683) 0 (27,683) 26,314 (1,369) 1,369 0 3,000
Earmarked Revenue Reserves 8 3,435 0 0 0 0 0 3,606 3,606 7,041
Earmarked Capital Reserves 8 17,829 0 0 0 0 0 (4,975) (4,975) 12,854
Capital Receipts Reserve 19 926 0 0 0 523 523 0 523 1,449
Capital Grants Unapplied 19 5,417 0 0 0 364 364 0 364 5,781
Total Usable Reserves 30,607 (27,683) 0 (27,683) 27,201 (482) 0 (482) 30,125
Unusable Reserves
Revaluation Reserve 20a 9,448 0 108 108 (104) 4 0 a4 9,452
Capital Adjustment Account 20b 36,354 0 0 0 672 672 0 672 37,026
Police Pensions Reserve 20e (1,243,120) 0 78,700 78,700 (23,250) 55,450 0 55,450 (1,187,670)
LGPS Pensions Reserve 20e (47,136) 0 10,391 10,391 (4,362) 6,029 0 6,029 (41,107)
Collection Fund Adjustment Account 20c 720 0 0 0 (257) (257) 0 (257) 463
Accumulated Absences Account 20d (2,856) 0 0 0 100 100 0 100 (2,756)
Available for Sale Financial Instruments Reserve 20f (18) 7 7 0 7 7 (11)
Total Unusable Reserves (1,246,608) 0 89,206 89,206 (27,201) 62,005 0 62,005, (1,184,603)
Total Reserves (1,216,001) (27,683) 89,206 61,523 0 61,523 0 61,523 (1,154,478)
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Movement in Reserves Statement — PCC

The figures for the PCC Single Entity in 2018/19 are provided in the table below:

Movement in reserves Statement
(PCC)
Figures for 2018/19

Balance at 1 April 2018
Balance 1 April 2018
Surplus/ (deficit) on the
provision of services
Other comprehensive
income and expenditure
Total comprehensive
income and expenditure
Adjustment between
accounting basis and
funding basis under
regulations (Note 7)
Net increase / (decrease)
before transfers to/from
earmarked reserves
Transfers to/(from)
earmarked reserves
Increase/ (decrease) in

Adjustment to Opening
Balance at 31 March 2019

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Usable Reserves

Police Fund Account - 3,000 0 (2,299) 0 (2,299) 1,314 (985) 985 ] 3,000
Earmarked Revenue Reserves 8 7,041 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,235 1,235 8,276
Earmarked Capital Reserves 8 12,854 0 0 0 0 0 (1] (2,220) (2,220) 10,634
Capital Receipts Reserve 19 1,449 0 0 0 0 647 647 0 647 2,096
Capital Grants Unapplied 19 5,781 0 0 0 0 363 363 0 363 6,144
Total Usable Reserves 30,125 0 (2,299) 0 (2,299) 2,324 25 0 25 30,150
L Reserves

Revaluation Reserve 20a 9,452 0 0 3,936 3,936 (187) 3,749 0 3,749 13,201
Capital Adjustment Account 20b 37,026 0 0 0 0 (1,503) (1,503) 0 (1,503) 35,523
LGPS Pensions Reserve 20e (1,098) (3) 0 (164) (164) (119) (283) 0 (283) (1,384)
Collection Fund Adjustment Account 20c 463 0 0 0 0 (513) (513) 0 (513) (50)
Accumulated Absences Account 20d (6) 0 0 0 1] (2) (2) 0 (2) (8)
Available for Sale Financial Instruments Reserve 20f (11) 0 0 11 11 0 11 0 11 0
Total L Reserves 45,826 (3) 0 3,783 3,783 (2,324) 1,459 0 1,459 47,282
Total Reserves 75,951 (3) (2,299) 3,783 1,484 0 1,484 0 1,484 77,432

The comparative figures for 2017/18 are provided in the table below:

Movement in Reserves Statement N L o & o c2em 85¢ =4 = g
(PCC) R X 25 25 $sgs 25: 5S¢ 2 5
] = =l 2 g 29 5222 328 £ g s
Figures for 2017/18 ﬁ = g3 g3 £98% S8 g = 8 =
3 st 5t 2883 2¢E  5E 8 g
] £5 8 8 e 8 IR 5gd  ~8 E £
a 7] = £ =z 8 3 &
£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
Usable Reserves
Police Fund Account - 3,000 (279) 0 (279) (1,090) (1,369) 1,369 0 3,000
Earmarked Revenue Reserves 8 3,435 0 0 0 0 0 3,606 3,606 7,041
Earmarked Capital Reserves 8 17,829 0 0 0 0 0 (4,975) (4,975) 12,854
Capital Receipts Reserve 19 926 0 0 0 523 523 0 523 1,449
Capital Grants Unapplied 19 5,417 0 0 0 364 364 0 364 5,781
Total Usable Reserves 30,607 (279) 0 (279) (203) (482) 0 (482) 30,125
L ble Reserves
Revaluation Reserve 20a 9,448 0 108 108 (104) 4 0 4 9,452
Capital Adjustment Account 20b 36,354 0 0 0 672 672 0 672 37,026
LGPS Pensions Reserve 20e (1,258) 0 269 269 (109) 160 0 160 (1,098)
Collection Fund Adjustment Account 20c 720 0 0 1] (257) (257) 0 (257) 463
Accumulated Absences Account 20d (7) 0 0 (1] 1 1 0 1 (6)
Available for Sale Financial Instruments Reserve 20f (18) 0 7 7 0 7 0 7 (11)
Total Unusable Reserves 45,239 0 384 384 203 587 0 587 45,826
Total Reserves 75,846 (279) 384 105 0 105 0 105 75,951
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Balance Sheet — PCC & Group

PCC PCC Group Group
31 March 2018 31 March 2019 31 March 2018 31 March 2019
£000s £000s £000s

Balance Sheet

"l Information Technology Equipment
Furniture, Equipment & Plant
Assets Under Construction (Land & Buildings)

Intangible Assets - Software
Long Term Assets

Assets held for sale (within 1yr)
Inventories
~ |Short Term Debtors (external)

Short Term Debtors (funding balance owed to PCC by CC) i 4,500 3,00-3-3'
Cash and Cash Equivalents CF6 | 3,774 5,065 5,065
Current Assets 46,803 37,455 25,367
Short Term Creditors (external) 1 1 (13,906). (11,601) ... {11,601)
Short Term Creditors (amounts owed by PCC to CC re CC share of external debtors) (4,386)
Short Term Creditors (funding balance due from PCC to CC) (10,072)
PFI Finance Lease Liability Due within 1 Year (142)
IProvisions 16 | of ol 08 1,333)
Other Long Term Liabilities
Pensions liability - Police 18 | 0 (1,296,300)
_|Pensions liability-Lgps 1 8 __________________ (1,098): ~ (54,038)
B | (4,745) (4,585)
Long Term Liabilities (5,843) (5,969) (1,234,920): (1,356,256)
Net Assets / Net (Liabilities) 75,951 77,432 (1,154,478): (1,274,578)

Usable reserves

Police Fund

|Earmarked reserves (revenue) e
Earmarked reserves (capital)

Capital Receipts Reserve

Capital Grants Unapplied

Unusable Reserves

Revaluation Reserve
Capital Adjustment Account

35,523 37,026 35,523

Pensions Reserve - Police 0
Pensions Reserve - LGPS (1,384)
Collection Fund Adjustment Account 7 0 T Tae3n (50)
Accumulated Absences Account (8)
|Available for Sale Financial Instruments Reserve . 20f (@i 0 ;
47,282 (1,184,603) (1,304,728)
Total Reserves 3 75,951 77,432 (1,154,478)5 (1,274,578)

The unaudited accounts were issued on 23 May 2019 and the audited accounts were authorized for issue on 25 July
2019.

Signature removed for publication on website
Signed:

Roger Marshall, Joint Chief Finance Officer.
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Cash Flow Statement — PCC & Group

Cash Flow Statement (PCC and Group) e Al A ey e
Note 2017/18 2018/19 2017/18 2018/19

Below £000s £000s £000s £000s

§ { $ : | 1
S I | S S SE— T
2735 2,299 27, 683 83,736

ENet (Surplus) or Deficit on the provision of services

;Adjustment to net surplus or deficit on the provision of services for non-
\cash movements

{Adjustment for items included in the net surplus or deficit on the provision
Eof services that are investing and financing activities

NSO S

ENet cash (inflow)/ outflow from Operating Activities

iNet (increase) or decrease in cash and cash equivalents

.............................................................................................................................................................

i

i

1

§

4 . . el { 1
_Investing Activities j
i |
1

i

i

{

i

ECash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting period

U S

ECash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period

3.044)  (3774)  (3044)  (3,774)
(3,774)’ L (3774)

CF1 - The Adjustment to net surplus or deficit on the provision of services
ifor non-cash movements are made up as follows: |

EDebtors - Change in Balance Sheet (Adjustment for Purchase of Fixed
___E_Assets)

-"F-’-f-c;\-/-i;ions - Change in Balance Sheet

{Adjustment to net surplus or deficit on the provision of services for non-
icash movements i
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Cash Flow Statement — PCC & Group

Cash Flow Statement (PCC and Group) e e ey e
2017/18 2018/19 2017/18 2018/19

£000s £000s £000s

§CF2 - The Adjustment for items included in the net surplus or deficit on
ithe provision of services that are investing and financing activities are
made up as follows:

_ {Proceeds from the Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangibles
{Adjustment for items included in the net surplus or deficit on the
{provision of services that are investing and financing activities

5355

ECF3 - The cash flows from Operating Activities include the following
items:

!Interest received

EProceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible
lassets

'Proceeds from short-term and long-term investments

.....

Net cash flows from investing activities

6,393: @l’fiw 6,3

_,,,_.,,;..,,;..,,;w,;w,,w,,;..,,;..,,;..,,;_,,.,_,,,_.,,;..,,;..,,;w,;w,,w,,T.,,;..,,;_,,;_,,.,w,,_.-,,_,,,_,,,;w,;w

{Cash payments for the reduction of the outstanding liabilities relating to
ifinance leases and on-balance sheet PFl contracts

____E_Net cash flows from financing activities

_(52)

.......... (2,018)

(1,705);  (2,995) (2,995)
(3,774):  (5,065) (5,065)

| i !

Accounting Policy - Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash is represented by cash in hand, petty cash and deposits with financial institutions repayable without penalty
on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash and
cash equivalents may also include overdrawn balances at the bank where they are an integral part of cash
management. Generally, cash and cash equivalents will comprise, cash in hand, bank account balances, overnight
deposits and deposits with Money Market Funds which are repayable on demand without penalty or loss of
interest.

In accordance with the Commissioner’s funding arrangement with the Chief Constable, the Chief Constable is
funded on a cash basis, accordingly all cash and cash equivalent balances are recorded on the balance sheet of the
Commissioner.

In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are repayable on
demand or form an integral part of cash management.
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Notes to the Accounts

Index of Notes to the Accounts

Note Title Page
1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1.vveieiiiiiee ettt ettt e e et e e s sttt e e e sbteeessabteeesssteeesestaaessseaeessnntneessnnes 41
2 Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting POlICIES ......evvveiiiiiiiiiee e 41
3 Events after the Balance Sheet Date.......ouciiii it ee e e aaeee s 42
4 Assumptions made about the future and other Sources of Estimation Uncertainty .........ccccccveeenns 43
5 Expenditure and FUNING ANGIYSIS ....viiiiiiiieiiiie ettt et e st eesete e ste e e sabeesnteeesaeeesnneeenes 44
6 Expenditure and Income Analysed bY NAtUIe .....c.ooiieeiieiiiieciee et s see e s 52
7 Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under Regulations...........cccccevcveeriueeenee. 53
8 Transfers to/from EQarmarked RESEIVES ........occuviiiiiiiiii ettt ettt ette e ettt e et e s sbaee e s snaeeeesanes 57
9 Property, PIant and EQUIPIMENT.......ii ittt ettt e et e e st eetae e sate e eteeesnseesnteeesneeesnneeenns 59
10 F Y=l A =] o i o T Y- Y[R PR 66
11 INEANGIDIE ASSEES ..ottt e e e et e e e et e e e e aae e e e eeateeeeeataee e e asaeeeeansaeeeeansaeeeeanreeeaan 67
12 Private FINaNCe INItiative (PF1)......eee et e et e et e et e e e e e e e e nreeeean 68
13 T L TP PP PP PPPPTPPPPPPPORE 70
14 ) gl g i =T g s g T D= o) oY PSSR PRR 72
15 ) gTo ) g i €= g g @1 1o PSPPI 73
16 L £0 )V (o] o PP PP PSP PTUPPPPPRIRE 74
17 e Yol W T 1Sy {04 =] oL PSPPSR 76
18 PBINSIONS ettt ettt e e e e e sttt et e e e e e e —— et e e e e e e e eaabbeaaeeeeeeaahtbraeeeeeeeeaarnree 76
19 USDIE RESEIVES .eiiiiiiiie ettt ettt e e ettt e e ettt e e et e e e e s teeeeeabaeeeesbaeeeeansaeeeeansseeesansaeeesansseaeean 77
20 UNUSADIE RESEIVES ....eeiieteeiite ettt ettt ettt ettt et e st e sttt e s bt e e sabeesabaeebbeesabteesabeesabeesnbeesabeeenns 78
21 Related Party TranSACiONS ....cccciiieeiciieeeeie e ettt e e ettt e e ettt e e e ete e e e e sate e e e esbaeeeeabaeeeessaeeeennsseeesansseeenan 83
22 Members AlloWanCes aNd EXPENSES .....uiiicuiiieiiiiiieecciiee ettt e ettt e et e e et e e esase e e essaeeeesbaeeeessseeeeas 84
23 Disclosure of Remuneration for SENIOr EMPIOYEES ......ceiiiuiiiiiiiiiiieciieee et 84
24 EMPIOYEE REMUNEIATION 1oiutiieeiieciie ettt e stte e et e et e e st e e eteeessbeesnsaeesteesnseaessseesnseeensseesseeanns 87
25 Exit Packages/Termination PayMENTS......ccciiuiiiieeiieeieeieeseesre e eteeteesteestaesaaessseesseenteesteesraessnesnnenns 88
26 LAY Lo L =YY PSPPSR 89
27 LCT =T o) o [ ToloT0 o [ TP PP PT R PPPTPPPPPPOORE 90
28 INCOME FrOM COUNCH TAX 1eeetiieiuiieeiitesieeeiteeesieeeieeestteesteeestaeessteeeseeessseesnseeessseesnseaessseesnseeensseesnsesane 92
29 Capital Expenditure and Capital FINANCING ....ccovieiiieiiieeceee et ee e et eeneeesaree s 93
30 (0 To 1 =1 I @0 T2 010 0V /01141 (3 S OURR 94
31 MiINIMUM REVENUE PrOVISION ..ttt ettt e ettt e e e e e et e e e e e e e saannneeeeeeeeesannnnee 95
32 Accounting Standards that have been Issued but have not yet been Adopted ........cccceeeeevinnnnnnnnnn. 95
33 =T a1y (oY o @ o F=1 1 1= o ¥ = USSR 96
34 Prior Period AdJUSTMENT.......iii ettt e e e e et e e et e e e e e sabaeeeenaaeeessnsaeeeeannreaeean 97

The notes to the accounts are provided to aid the understanding of material items within the core financial statements.
Where the figures provided are different for the Group and PCC Single Entity either separate notes will be provided or
a single note will show the respective figures in different columns, these will be headed Group or PCC. Where the
figures are the same for the group and single entity a single note is provided, this is headed up PCC/Group. As a general
rule, the column showing the figures for 2018/19 will be highlighted, whilst the comparatives for 2017/18 (where
provided) will not.

The notes sometimes include terms that may require further explanation. Where possible, explanations are provided
within the note, otherwise explanations are provided within the “glossary of terms” in pages 100-102. Terms for which
an explanation is provided will be depicted by text that is shown in teal coloured text and underlined.
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Notes to the Accounts

1 Accounting Policies
There are a number of accounting policies that determine how items within the accounts are treated. Where
these accounting policies relate to a particular note to the accounts, the accounting policy will now be shown

alongside that note in a |grey text box. Where an accounting policy is more generic and applicable across the
statement accounts it will continue to be shown in a separate technical annex, Annex A (see pages 103-105).

2 Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies
In applying the accounting policies as set out alongside the relevant note or in Annex A (pages 103 to 105), the
Commissioner has had to make certain judgements about complex transactions or those involving uncertainty
about future events. The critical judgements made in the Statement of Accounts are:

= There is a high degree of uncertainty about future levels of funding for policing. However, the Commissioner
has determined that this uncertainty is not yet sufficient to provide an indication that the assets of the
Commissioner might be impaired as a result of a need to close facilities and reduce levels of service provision.

= The Commissioner is deemed to control the services provided under the PFl agreement in relation to the
West Cumbria TPA HQ at Workington. The accounting policies for PFl schemes and similar contracts have
been applied to the arrangement. The Commissioner has a number of options regarding ownership of the
PFI building beyond the initial 25 year contract period including the right to purchase the asset for half of its
market value at that time. In December 2015, the PFI building at Hall Brow Workington experienced flooding
for the second time in six years. The impact of the flooding on the building highlighted resilience issues for
the longer term in respect of both custody and deployment. As a result, options for the future provision of
the police estate in West Cumbria are under review and the capital programme for 2018/19 and beyond
includes an indicative scheme which seeks to address those resilience issues and provide a longer term
solution to the PFl arrangement. In accounting for the PFl contract it is assumed that there is reasonable
certainty that the Commissioner will exercise the right to purchase the building. Accordingly the PFlland and
building are recognised as property, plant and equipment in the Commissioner’s balance sheet at full value
of £7.3m. In addition, a liability for outstanding obligations to pay for the building, which includes the cost
of purchasing the asset for half its market value at the end of the PFI period are also shown on the balance
sheet. Asthe PFl contract approaches its end it may be necessary to reflect an additional liability to recognise
that the market value of the asset may exceed the construction cost.
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Notes to the Accounts

3 Events after the Balance Sheet Date
A post balance sheet event is an event, subsequent to the date of the financial statements, and for which
International Financial Reporting Standards and the Code require adjustment or disclosure. Consideration has
been given as to whether any events meet the requirement to be disclosed as a post balance sheet event and it
has been concluded that no such matters require disclosure.

The Statement of Accounts was authorised for issue by the Joint Chief Finance Officer on 25 July 2019. Events
taking place after this date are not reflected in the financial statements or notes.

Accounting Policy - Events after the Balance Sheet Date

Events after the balance sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between
the end of the reporting period and the date the Statement of Accounts is authorised for issue which have
an impact on the financial statements and are treated as follows. Two types of events can be identified:

o Those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period —the Statement
of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events.

o Those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period — the Statement of Accounts
is not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of events would have a material effect,

disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of the event and their estimated financial effect.

Events taking place after the authorised for issue date are not reflected in the statement of accounts.
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Notes to the Accounts

4 Assumptions made about the future and other Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
The statement of Accounts contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions made by the
Commissioner about the future or that are otherwise uncertain. Estimates are made taking into account
historical experience, current trends and other relevant factors. However, because balances cannot be
determined with certainty, actual results could be materially different from the assumptions and estimates.

The items in the Commissioner’s group balance sheet as at 31 March 2019 for which there is significant risk of

material adjustment in the forthcoming financial year are as follows:

Uncertainties

Effect if Actual Results Differ from

Assumptions

Property, Land and buildings assets are revalued on a two year | Revaluation gains and losses or

Plant and rolling basis. Therefore the value of the assets that | disposal proceeds in future years may

Equipment | have not been subject to valuation in the financial | be significantly different than
year may not reflect the true value of that asset. anticipated. However, as all land and

building assets are subject to an
At the balance sheet date 31 March 2019 the value | annual impairment review, the
of property, plant and equipment was £65m. impact of this is thought to be
immaterial.

Pensions Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions | The effects on the net pension

Liability depends on a number of complex judgements | liability of changes in individual
relating to the discount rate used, the rate at which | assumptions can be measured.
salaries are projected to increase, changes in | Examples of the impact of changes in
retirement ages, mortality rates and expected | individual assumptions is included in
returns on pension fund assets. Two firms of | the sensitivity analysis provided in
consulting actuaries are engaged to provide the | the technical annex to the accounts
Commissioner with expert advice about the | (Annex C) Pension Disclosures (pages
assumptions to be applied for both the Police | 112-123).

Pension Scheme (Government Actuaries
Department) and the Local Government Pension
Scheme (Mercer Ltd).

At the balance sheet date, the liability in respect of
the LGPS pension scheme was £54m and for the
police pension scheme was £1,296m.

Provisions | The Chief Constable has made a provision of £279k | An increase over the forthcoming
for the settlement of insurance liabilities for a | year of 10% in either the number of
number of eventualities which are not covered by | claims received or the estimated
external insurers. The provision is based on an | average settlement would each have
actuarial estimate but it is not yet certain that all | the effect of adding £28k to the
valid claims have yet been received by the Chief | provision needed.

Constable.

The Chief Constable has made a provision of £819k | An increase over the forthcoming

in relation to the potential cost of legal claims | year of 10% in either the number of

against the Constabulary which are currently | claims received or the estimated

ongoing. average settlement would each have
the effect of adding £82k to the
provision needed.
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Notes to the Accounts

Uncertainties Effect if Actual Results Differ from
Assumptions
Provisions | The Chief Constable has made a provision of £235k | A 10% increase over the estimated
(continued) | in relation to the potential cost of capital equivalent | average settlement would have the
costs associated with three ill health retirements | effect of adding £23k to the provision
agreed in 2018/19 but for which an appeal process | needed.
can still be undertaken.

5 Expenditure and Funding Analysis
This note shows how annual expenditure is used and funded from resources (government grants, council tax
precepts) by the Commissioner in comparison with those resources consumed or earned in accordance with
generally accepted accounting practices. It also shows how this expenditure is allocated for decision making
purposes between subjective headings. Income and expenditure accounted for under generally accepted
accounting practices is presented more fully in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Due to the size of the statements, the positions for the Group and the PCC are shown in separate tables.

The figures for the group in 2018/19 are provided in the table below:

Group 2018/19
As reported for Adjustment to Net Expenditure Adjustments Net Expenditure

Expenditure and Funding

resource arrive at the net Chargeable to between in the
Analy5|s (Group) management amount chargeable the Police Fund Fundingand Comprehensive

to the Police Fund balance Accounting Inocome and
balance (Note 5) Basis (Note 7) Expenditure
Statement
£000s £000s £000s

Cost of Policing & Crime Services _ _ - - B -
Police Officer Pay & Allowances ] ] 81472 0 81,472 _(9,220)
PCSO Pay & Allowances _ ) 2852 0 2,852 _(341)
Police Staff Pay & Allowances ] - 22,236} 0} 22,236 3,287
Other Employee Budgets 7 7 _ 3,382 B 0! 3,382 0:
Premises Related Expenditure ) ] 4,192 0 4,192 0:
Transport Related Expenditure ) - _2,323¢ 0 2,303 0i
Supplies & Services Expenditure ] L _lo424| 0 10,424 0:
Third Party Related Expenditure ) ) _3487( ) 0 3,487 - 0
Technical Accounting Adjustments ] 71,4741 (4,845) 2,629 1,489
Income from Fees & Charges ) - (6,136)f 0 (6,136) ) 0
Grants & Contributions _ L _(22,500)3 _ 0 (22,500)! _ (o}
Use of Capital Receipts ] ] ) (12) 0 (12) B 12
Non distributed costs - ) ) ) 55| 0o 55  56,282:
Termination Payments ) _ ; 62 ; 0; 62 ; 0:
Net Cost of Services ) ] - _109,311‘ ) (4,845) 104,466 51,509
Other Income and Expenditure ] ] (103,481) ) o (103,481) 31,242:
(Surplus)/Deficit on the Provision of Services 5,8303 (4,845)} 985 | 82,751

Earmarked
. Earmarked Revenue )
Police Fund Capital

Reserves
Reserves

Opening Police Fund Balance 1 April 2018

Closing Police Fund Balance at 31 March 2019 (3,000) (8,276) (10,634) (21,910)

’ ’
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The comparative figures for the group in 2017/18 are provided in the table below:

Group 2017/18
Expenditure and Funding As reported for Ac.ljustment to Net Expenditure Adjustments Net E?(penditure
resource arrive at the net Chargeable to between in the
Analysis (GI’OUp) management amount chargeable the Police Fund Fundingand  Comprehensive
to the Police Fund balance Accounting Inocome and
balance (Note 5) Basis (Note 7) Expenditure
Statement

£000s £000s £000s

Cost of Policing & Crime Services

Police Officer Pay & Allowances ' L 78760 0 78,760 (9,570) 69,190

Supplies & Services Expenditure

Third Party Related Expenditure

NetCostofServices i 106826)  (4423); 102,403; | (7,692); ! 94,711
Other Income and Expenditure T (101,034) o (101,034 34,0070 | (67,027)
(Surplus)/Deficit on the Provision of Services 5,792 (4,423); 1,369 26,315 27,684

Earmarked

. Earmarked Revenue .
Police Fund Capital

Reserves
Reserves

Opening Police Fund Balance 1 April 2017
Less Deficit on Police Fund Balance in Year : (3, ! 1,369
Closing Police Fund Balance at 31 March 2017 (3,000) (7,041) (12,854) (22,895)
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The figures for the PCC in 2018/19 are provided in the table below:

PCC 2018/19
Expenditure and Funding As reported for quustment to Net Expenditure Adjustments Net E?(penditure
resource arrive at the net Chargeable to between in the
Analysis (PCC) management amount chargeable the Police Fund Fundingand  Comprehensive
to the Police Fund balance Accounting Inocome and
balance (Note 5) Basis (Note 7) Expenditure
Statement
£000s £000s £000s

Crime Services

Premises Related Expenditure
Transport Related Expenditure

(6,136)

............................... i e

(22,500) (22,500)

(12),

Non distributed costs

Termination Payments

I 110,897 o 110,897,
104,466

E
) Earmarked Revenue armajrked
Police Fund Capital
Reserves

Reserves
_____ (7,041) (12,854) (22,895).
Less Deficit on Police Fund BalanceinYear =~ 0 (1235) 220 Y 985
Closing Police Fund Balance at 31 March 2019 (3,000) (8,276): (10,634): (21,910):
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The comparative figures for the PCC in 2017/18 are provided in the table below:

PCC 2017/18
As reported for Adjustment to Net Expenditure Adjustments Net Expenditure
resource arrive at the net Chargeable to between in the
Analysis (PCC) management amount chargeable the Police Fund Fundingand  Comprehensive
to the Police Fund balance Accounting Inocome and
balance (Note 5) Basis (Note 7) Expenditure
Statement
£000s £000s

Expenditure and Funding

Cost of Policing & Crime Services
Police Officer Pay & Allowances

Technical Accounting Adjustments
Income from Fees & Charges

............................................................................................................................................................... e A s s 4

Grants & Contributions (24,763) | 0! (24,763) 0 (24,763),
Use of Capital Receipts i (12), 0 (12) 12 0
Termination Payments ] I o I o 45
Funding Provided by PCCtocC ~© 105851 o 105851 0 105,851
Net Cost of Services ' (4,423) 102,403 (1,120) 101,283
Other Income and Expenditure 7 . (101,034) 0 (101,034) (101,003)
(Surplus)/Deficit on the Provision of Services i

(4,423) 1,369

Earmarked
) Earmarked Revenue :
Police Fund Capital

Reserves
Reserves

Opening Police Fund Balance 1 April 2017 (3,000) (17,829) (24,264)
Less Deficit on Police Fund Balance in Year 0 4,975/ < 1,369

Closing Police Fund Balance at 31 March 2017 (3,000) (7,041) (12,854)' (22,895)'
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5.a Note to the Expenditure Funding Analysis

This note provides a reconciliation of the main adjustments to net expenditure chargeable to the Police Fund
(as detailed in note 6) to arrive at the amounts in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (pages

33-34). The relevant transfers between reserves are explained in the Movement in Reserves Statement (pages
35-36).

The figures for the Group for 2018/19 are set out in the table below:

Note to the Expenditure AT
) . Depreciation Rental Total to arrive  Adjustment  Net change Other Total
and Fu nd'“g AnaleIS Income at amount for capital for the Differences  Adjustment
(Group) charged to the  purposes Pensions Between
Police Fund (See below) Adjustment (See below) funding and

(See below) accounting basis
£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

(9,220)
(341)

Other Income and Expenditur
(Surplus)/Deficit on the Provision of
Services

Further Analysis of Adjustments

Accumulated Absences Account Adj
Total Adjustments
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The comparative figures for the Group for 2017/18 are set out in the table below:

Note to the
Expenditure and
Funding Analysis

Rental
Income

Depreciation

£000s

Total to arrive
at amount
charged to the
Police Fund

Group 2017/18

Adjustment
for capital
purposes

(See below)

Net change
for the
Pensions

Adjustment
(See below)

£000s

Other

Differences

(See below)

£000s

Total
Adjustment
Between
funding and
accounting basis

£000s

Cost of Policing & :@:}ime Services

Allowances
PCSO Pay & Allowances
Police Staff Pay & Allowances

Technical Accounting Adjustments i

(4423)

Use of Capital Receipts

0:

Other Income andmlé;penditure

o

0!

34,007

(Surplus)/Deficit on the Provision of
Services

(4,423)

(1,466);

27,612}

26,315

Depreciation/Amortisation
Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP)
Revaluations

Direct Revenue Cc}-r}-'é:ribution

Capital Grant Bveve-r-salw
Pofit & Loss on Sale of FA

Police Pensions - Reverse Employer Contributions

_(31,240);

Police Pensions - Current Service Cost

LGPS - Interest on Liabilities

20,870'

LGPS - Return on Plan Assets

LGPS - Curtailment/Settlement

LG i

Uwsé of Capital Receipts

Collection Fund Adjustment

Accumulated Absences Account Adj

Total Adjustments

Police and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria — Statement of Accounts 2018/19
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The figures for the PCC for 2018/19 are set out in the table below:

Note to the Expenditure
and Funding Analysis
(PCC)

Rental
Income

Depreciation

£000s £000s

Other Income and Expenditure

Total to arrive
at amount
charged to the
Police Fund

PCC 2018/19
Adjustment
for capital
purposes
(See below)

Other
Differences

Net change
for the
Pensions
Adjustment
(See below)

(See below)

£000s £000s £000s

Total
Adjustment
Between
funding and
accounting basis

£000s

(Surplus)/Deficit on the Provision of

i (a,845)
Services ]

J

|
| é
i 668
{

Depreciation/Amortisation |
Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) !
Revaluations
Direct Revenue Contribution
Capital Grant Reversal
Pofit& LossonSaleof FA ¢+ ¢

LGPS - Interest on Liabilities
LGPS - Return on Plan Assets

Accumulated Absences-;&ccoun-t"Adjm

Total Adjustments

Police and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria — Statement of Accounts 2018/19
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The comparative figures for the PCC for 2017/18 are set out in the table below:

Note to the PCC 2017/18
Depreciation Rental Total to arrive  Adjustment  Net change Other Total

Expe nditure and Income at amount for capital for the Differences  Adjustment
Funding Analysis (PCC) charged to the  purposes Pensions Between

Police Fund  (See below) Adjustment (See below) funding and
(See below) accounting basis

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

{:ést of Politi:ii-ﬁg & CrimiéiServices
ay & Allowances

o

Police Staff Pay & Allowances
Other Employee Budgets
Premises Related Expenditure

Supplies & Services Expenditure
Third Party Related Expenditure

(4,423

Income from Fees & Charges | | 0|

Grants & Contributions |
Use of Capital Receipts

Technical Accounting Adjustments

Tel n P
Net Cost of Services

Other Income and Expenditure

(Surplus)/Deficit on the Provision of

i 0 (4,423) (1,466) 109' 268 (1,089)
Services : : ! {

Further Anawsis of Adjﬁ;tments

Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP)
Revaluations

Capital Grant Reversal
Pofit & Loss on Sale of FA
LGPS - Interest on Liabilities
LGPS-ReturnonPlanAssets .
LGPS - Curtailment/Settlement
LGPS - Reverse Em pong_r__Contribut_i_c_)_nsE
LGPS - Current Service Cost :
Use of Capital Receipts

Accumulated Absences Account Adj

Total Adjustments (1,466): 109! 268 (1,089)
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6 Expenditure and Income Analysed by Nature
This note provides an analysis of the expenditure and income by the nature of that spend/income.

PCC PCC Group Group

Expenditure and Income 2017/18 2018/19  2017/18  2018/19
£000s £000s £000s

'Expenditure

~_{Other Employee Costs
‘Premises

(2,033):
2,177

Loss on the Disposal of Assets

ETechnicaI Accounting Adjustments

Investment Property Rental Income

_____ e RSV . ISRV VSV

‘Income from Grant & Contributions

.......................................................................................................................................

‘Pensions Top Up grant (Home Office)

‘Total Income

iTransfer to Earmarked Reserves (Revenue)

_____ A A P,

‘Transfer from Earmarked Reserves (Capital)

:External Financing

{Income from Council Tax

iCollection Fund Adjustment

iGeneral Government Grants
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Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under Regulations
This note details the adjustments that are made to the total comprehensive income and expenditure recognised
by the Commissioner in the year in accordance with proper accounting practice to the resources that are
specified by statutory provisions as being available to the Commissioner to meet future capital and revenue

expenditure.

The figures for the Group for 2018/19 are set out in the table below:

Adjustments between Accounting

Basis and Funding Basis Under
Regulations

Adjustments to the Revenue Resources

Group
Police
Fund

Balance
£000s

Group
Capital
Receipts

Reserve
£000s

Group
Capital
Grants

Unapplied
£000s

Group
Total
Usable
Reserves
£000s

Amounts by which income and expenditure included in the :
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement are :
different from revenue for the year calculated in

accordance with statutory requirements:

- Pensions costs (transferred to (or from) the Pensions
Reserve)

- Council tax (transfers to or from Collection Fund)

- Holiday Pay (transfers to or from Accumulated Absences
Account) :

- Reversal of entries included in the Surb-l-ﬁs or Deficiton -
the Provision of Services in relation to capital expenditure
(these items are charged to the Capital Adjustment
Account)

Total Adjustments to the Revenue Resources

- Transfer of non-current asset sale proceeds from
revenue to the Capital Receipts Reserve

- Administrative costs of non-current asset disposals
(funded by a contribution from the Capital receipts
Reserve)

- Statutory provision for the repayment"(-)-f debt (MRP)
(transfer from the Capital Adjustment Account)

(432)

- Capital expenditure financed from revenue balances
(transfer to the Capital Adjustment Account)

 (2,839)]

(2,839)

Total Adjustments between Revenue and Capital
Resources

(3,918)

(3,271)

Total Adjustments

Police and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria — Statement of Accounts 2018/19
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The comparative figures for the Group for 2017/18 are set out in the table below:

Adjustments between Accounting g;‘l’l‘c‘z g;:l‘t‘; f;:::l GT:’t‘;f

Basis and Funding Basis Under Fund Receipts  Grants Usable
. Balance Reserve  Unapplied Reserves
Regulations £000s £000s £000s £000s

Adjustments to the Revenue Resources

...................................................

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement are
different from revenue for the year calculated in

1

; |

N S NS SO L
Amounts by which income and expenditure included in the : ; ;
: | |

2 :

!

? ‘

| - Pensions costs (transferred to (or from) the Pensions
Reserve)

- Holiday Pay (transfers to or from Accumulated Absences |
Account) ._20d_| (100)
- Reversal of entries included in the Surplus or Deficit on |
the Provision of Services in relation to capital expenditure .
(these items are charged to the Capital Adjustment i

Account)

o

- Transfer of non-current asset sale proceeds from
revenue to the Capital Receipts Reserve

- Administrative costs of non-current asset disposals
(funded by a contribution from the Capital receipts

Reserve) % | 12 (1) o .0
- Statutory provision for the repayment of debt (MRP) {

_(}Laffi&?ﬁitomLh,emcﬁaﬁpite'ﬁé@gzameniﬁssaanﬂmmﬁﬁmﬁi,mz»l,mi,mwm(i@)’% B o o _(423)
- Capital expenditure financed from revenue balances | i

(transfer to the Capital Adjustment Account) 29 (5255) 0 0 (5,255)

Total Adjustments between Revenue and Capital o T | |

Resources (6,201), 523 I (5,678),

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ I S

Adjustments to Capital Resources ’ o I
- Application of capital grants to finance capital M | ; |

expenditure 20 0 o o 0

Total Adjustments to Capital Resources T S, R Ol ! 0 0

: | ¢ !
Total Adjustments | 26,314 ‘ 523 Z 364! 27,201
54| Page

Police and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria — Statement of Accounts 2018/19



Notes to the Accounts

The figures for the PCC for 2018/19 are set out in the table below:

PCC
Police
Fund
Balance
£000s

Adjustments between Accounting
Basis and Funding Basis Under
Regulations

Adjustments to the Revenue Resources

Amounts by which income and expenditure included in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement are :

different from revenue for the year calculated in

accordance with statutory requirements: .

- Pensions costs (transferred to (or from) the Pensions
Reserve)

PCC
Capital
Receipts
Reserve
£000s

PCC
Capital
Grants

Unapplied
£000s

- Council tax (transfers to or from Collection Fund)

- Holiday Pay (transfers to or from Accumulated Absences

Account) ~20d

- Reversal of entries included in the Surplus orDef|C|ton
the Provision of Services in relation to capital expenditure :
(these items are charged to the Capital Adjustment
Account)

Total Adjustments to the Revenue Resources

Adjustments between Revenue and Capital Resources

- Transfer of non-current asset sale proceeds from
revenue to the Capital Receipts Reserve

- Administrative costs of non-current asset disposals :
(funded by a contribution from the Capital receipts
Reserve)

- Statutory pFovision for the repayment of debt(MRP)
(transfer from the Capital Adjustment Account)

- Capital expenditure financed from revenue balances

Total Adjustments between Revenue and Capital
Resources

Adjustments to Capital Resources
- Application of capital grants to finance capital
expenditure

20b

Total Adjustn;;-ﬁts to Capital Resources

PCC
Total
Usable

Reserves
£000s

Total Adjustments

Police and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria — Statement of Accounts 2018/19
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The comparative figures for the PCC for 2017/18 are set out in the table below:

. H PCC PCC PCC PCC
Adjustments between Accounting Dolice el e Total

Basis and Funding Basis Under Fund Receipts  Grants Usable

. Balance Reserve  Unapplied Reserves
Regulations £000s £000s £000s £000s

Adjustments to the Revenue Resources

Amounts by which income and expenditurrre included in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement are
different from revenue for the year calculated in
laccordance with statutory requirements:

- Pensions costs (transferred to (or from) the Pensions : 20e/
Reserve) | Annex C 109 o0 0 109
- Council tax {transfers to or from Collection Fund) 2c/29 | 2570 ] o .27

- Holiday Pay (transfers to or from Accumulated Absences : 5
Account) . 20d i (1) 0 0 (1)

- Reversal of entries included in the Surplus or Deficit on '
the Provision of Services in relation to capital expenditure
(these items are charged to the Capital Adjustment
Account)

Total Adjustments to the Revenue Resources

- Transfer of non-current asset sale proceeds from
revenue to the Capital Receipts Reserve

- Administrative costs of non-current asset disposals
(funded by a contribution from the Capital receipts ;
Reserve) 9 ) 12 (12) 0 0

- Statutory provision for the repayment of debt (MRP) '

- Capital expenditure financed from revenue balances
(transfer to the Capital Adjustment Account)

Total Adjustments between Revenue and Capital
Resources

Adjustments to Capital Resources
- Application of capital grants to finance capital

expenditure 20b 0 0 0: 0
Total Adjustments to Capital Resources = S 0 0 0
Total Adjustments | (1,090) 523 364 (203)
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8 Transfers to/from Earmarked Reserves
This note sets out the amounts set aside from the Police Fund balances in earmarked reserves to provide
financing for future expenditure plans and the movement on earmarked reserves during 2018/19 (and
comparatives for 2017/18).

Earmarked Reserves PCC/Group PCC/Group Description/Purpose

2017/18 2018/19

£000s £000s
Insurance Reserve
Balance at Start of Year 738 1,142 To offset any insurance claims not specifically detailed in the insurance
Transfer to Reserve in Year 353 76 provision.
Transfer from Reserve in Year 51 (15)
Transfers Between Reserves 0 19
Balance at End of Year 1,142 1,222

Commissioned Services Reserve

Balance at Start of Year 419 674 To provide resources for future expenditure on exisiting commitments
Transfer to Reserve in Year 255 307 under PCC commissioned services.

Transfer from Reserve in Year 0 0

Transfers Between Reserves 0 0

Balance at End of Year 674 981

Motor Claim Reserve

Balance at Start of Year 19 19 Now amalgamated into the main insurance reserve.
Transfer to Reserve in Year 0 0
Transfer from Reserve in Year 0 0
Transfers Between Reserves 0 (19)
Balance at End of Year 19 0

Chief Constable's Operational Reserve

Balance at Start of Year 144 250 To provide resources to assist in funding unexpected major events, if
Transfer to Reserve in Year 20 0 necessary. The Home Office Financial Management Code recommends
Transfer from Reserve in Year 0 0 that there should be an operational contingency.

Transfers Between Reserves 86 0

Balance at End of Year 250 250

Chief Constable's Contingency

Balance at Start of Year 0 500 Reserve held to meet an increase in budget pressure arising in year as a
Transfer to Reserve in Year 500 0 result of budgeting risks taken during the budget process. The

Transfer from Reserve in Year 0 0 establishment of this reserve has supported a significant reduction in the
Balance at End of Year 500 500 ongoing revenue budget requirement.

PFI Reserve & Lifecycle Replacement

Balance at Start of Year 309 289 To equalise the impact on the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Transfer to Reserve in Year 0 0 Statement of changing levels of grant income and charges over the period
Transfer from Reserve in Year (20) (15) of the PFl contract. A decision was taken during 2015/16 to transfer funds
Transfers Between Reserves 0 0 within this reserve in response to the December 2015 floods and

Balance at End of Year 289 274 consequent changes to the capital programme.

Police and Crime Commissioner Operational Contingency

Balance at Start of Year 250 250 To provide resources both to back up the annual operational contingency
Transfer to Reserve in Year 0 0 and, in addition, to assist in funding unexpected expenditure/budget
Transfer from Reserve in Year 0 0 pressures in line with the Commissioner's responsibilities. The Home
Balance at End of Year 250 250 Office Financial Management Code recommends that there should be an

operational contingency.
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Transfers to/from Earmarked Reserves (Continued)

Earmarked Reserves PCC/Group PCC/Group Description/Purpose

2017/18 2018/19

£000s £000s
Investment Fund
Balance at Start of Year 984 730 This fund was established to invest in initiatives to deliver the police and
Transfer to Reserve in Year 36 (460) crime plan.
Transfer from Reserve in Year 192 480
Transfers Between Reserves (482) 0
Balance at End of Year 730 750

Short Term Project Reserves

Balance at Start of Year 571 3,187 To support a variety of locally managed initiatives granted under the
Transfer to Reserve in Year 3,344 1,778 scheme of devolved resource management. These are primarily multi-
Transfer from Reserve in Year (642) (916) year technology based projects or resources to provide funding for
Transfers Between Reserves (86) 0 unbudgeted revenue costs within the 2018/19 or 2019/20 financial year.
Balance at End of Year 3,187 4,049

Total Revenue Reserves

Balance at Start of Year 3,434 7,041 Total of all reserves earmarked for revenue purposes (as set out above).
Transfer to Reserve in Year 4,508 1,701
Transfer from Reserve in Year (419) (466)
Transfers Between Reserves (482) 0
Balance at End of Year 7,041 8,276
Capital Reserves The capital reserve holds direct contributions from the revenue budget to
Balance at Start of Year 17,829 12,854 fund capital schemes within the approved capital programme. Capital
Transfer to Reserve in Year 0 493 reserves are set at a level to ensure that the programme is fully funded for
Transfer from Reserve in Year (5,457) (2,713) the life of the medium term financial forecast (4 years).
Transfers Between Reserves 482 0
Balance at End of Year 12,854 10,634
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9 Property, Plant and Equipment
The table below summarises the movements in Property, Plant and Equipment during the year:

PCC/Group Total PFI

Vehicles IT Furniture Assets Property, Assets

Property, Plant and

and and Equipment Under Plant & Included in
qu" pment Buildings Technology & Plant Construction Equipment P.P.E.
£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Cost or Valuation

Additions

Enhancements

Revaluation increases/(decreases) recognised
intheRevaluationReserve 0T R R
Revaluation increases/(decreases) recognised | ; !
in the Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of 435! 0}
Services ! : ;

(1,201); (818); o (2,799); 0

435! 0

Derecognition - Disposals

At 1 April 2018

Adjustment to Opening Balance (#)

Depreciation Charge

I-D-(-e-preciation written
Reserve
Depreciation written out to the Surplus/Deficit
on the Provision of Services

Impairment written out to the Surplus/Deficit on
the Provision of Services }

0: 0:

(362)} (5,767); (14,209); (3,089):

# The adjustment to opening balance is to correct the presentation in respect of the gross book value and
accumulated depreciation for a disposal made in 2017/18, the changes net each other off and do not impact
on the totals shown on the balance sheet.

Construction on the Eden Deployment Centre commenced in May 2018 (design image)
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The comparative figures for 2017/18 are set out in the table below:

PCC/Group Total PFI

Pro pe rty, Plant and Vehicles IT Furniture Assets Property, Assets

and and Equipment Under Plant & Included in
Equment Buildings Technology & Plant Construction Equipment P.P.E.
£000s £000s £000s £000s

Cost or Valuation

At 1 April
Additions

Enhancements

Revaluation increases/(decreases) recognised
in the Reva ion Reserve
Revaluation increases/(decreases) recognised
in the Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of
Services

Derecognition - Disposals

At 1 April 2017

Depreciation Charge

Depreciation written out to the Revaluation
Reserve
Depreciation written out to the Surplus/Deficit
on the Provision of Services

At 31 March 2017
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Accounting Policy - Property, Plant and Equipment

Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of goods and services, for
rental to others, or for administrative purposes and that are expected to be used during more than one financial
year are classified as Property, Plant and Equipment.

The cost of services are debited with the following amounts to record the cost of holding non-current assets during
the year:
o Depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant services.

o Revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the services where there are no accumulated gains in
the Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be written off.

o Amortisation of non-current assets attributable to the services.

Council Tax is not required to be raised to fund depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses or amortisations.
However, an annual contribution from revenue is required towards the reduction in the overall borrowing
requirement equal to an amount calculated on a prudent basis and determined in accordance with statutory
guidance. This contribution is known as MRP (Minimum Revenue Provision). Depreciation, revaluation and
impairment losses and amortisations are therefore replaced by the contribution in the Police Fund Balance, by
way of an adjusting transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for
the difference between the two.

In accordance with the Commissioner’s funding arrangement with the Chief Constable, the Commissioner holds
all non—current assets. Accordingly, all depreciation, revaluations and impairments are recorded in the
Commissioner’s single entity financial statements. However, the Commissioner makes a charge to the Chief
Constable for the use of non-current assets, which is equivalent to his share of depreciation.

Recognition

Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment is capitalised on an
accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the future economic benefits or service potential associated with
the item will flow and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Expenditure that maintains but does not add
to an asset’s potential to deliver future economic benefits (i.e. repairs and maintenance) is charged to revenue as
an expense through the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement when it is incurred.

De-minimis levels have been set for capital projects at £25,000. No de-minimis level is set for individual items
within capital projects.

Measurement
Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising:
o  The purchase price

o  Any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management

Borrowing costs incurred are not capitalised whilst assets are under construction.

Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement basis:

Category Basis of Valuation

Land and Buildings (Specialised) Depreciated Replacement Cost

Land and Buildings (Non Specialised) Existing Use Value

Vehicles, Plant, Furniture and Equipment Depreciated Historic Cost (as a proxy for current value)
Assets Under Construction Historic Cost

Assets included in the Balance Sheet at current value (i.e. not valued at historic cost) are revalued sufficiently
regularly to ensure that their carrying amount is not materially different from their current value at the year-
end, but as a minimum every five years.
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Measurement (continued)

Increases in valuations are matched by credits to the Revaluation Reserve to recognise unrealised gains. Gains
are to be credited to the relevant function line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement where
they arise from the reversal of a loss previously charged to a function up to the amount of the original loss,
adjusted for depreciation (if material) that would have been charged if the loss had not been recognised.

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided for on all Property, Plant and Equipment assets by the systematic allocation of their
depreciable amounts over their useful lives. An exception is made for assets without a determinable finite useful
life (i.e. freehold land) and assets that are not yet available for use (i.e. assets under construction).

Depreciation is calculated on the following bases:
o Land and Buildings - straight-line allocation over the useful life of the property as estimated by the valuer up
to a maximum of 50 years

o Vehicles — straight line allocation over the estimated useful life (3 to 10 years)

o IT Equipment — straight line allocation over the estimated useful life (5 to 8 years)

No depreciation charge is made however in the year of acquisition but a full year charge is made in the year of
disposal. A full year’s depreciation charge is made in the year of revaluation of any asset.

Depreciation also has to be calculated on revaluation gains and is represented by the difference between
depreciation calculated at current cost and depreciation calculated at historic cost. The difference between the
two values is transferred each year from the Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account.

Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment asset has major components whose cost is significant in relation
to the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated separately (see component accounting section
below).

Once ICT equipment assets have been fully depreciated, at the end of their useful lives, the gross book value and
accumulated depreciation for those assets will be written out of the asset register. There will be no impact on
the core financial statements (balance sheet) as a result of this as the net book value will already be nil.

Component Accounting

Under the IFRS based code, separate recognition, depreciation and de-recognition of parts of assets is required.
This is often referred to as componentisation. Componentisation is a change that has to be applied prospectively
which means that it only needs to be considered for any non-current assets, acquired, improved or revalued after
1 April 2010. A componentisation policy has been established whereby all land and building assets with a value
in excess of £1m will be assessed to see if they contain a significant component. A significant component is defined
in the policy as one which exceeds £200k in value and has a different life to the remainder of the asset. Where a
component of a non-current asset is replaced or restored, the carrying amount of the old component shall be
derecognised and the new component reflected in the carrying amount. Each significant component of an item
of property, plant or equipment is depreciated separately. Depreciation is calculated on the balance brought
forward at the start of each year. Depreciation on the componentised assets will therefore only become effective
in the year following revaluation and subsequent split for componentisation.

Under the terms of the Commissioner’s funding arrangement to the Chief Constable all property, plant and
equipment is held by the Commissioner. Accordingly, all accounting entries in relation to the acquisition,
enhancement, revaluation, impairment, depreciation and sale of such assets are recorded in the single entity
accounts of the Commissioner. The Commissioner makes a charge to the Chief Constable for the use of such
assets which is equivalent to the Chief Constable’s share of depreciation.
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9.a Valuations Rolling Programme

The Commissioner carries out a rolling programme that ensures that all Property, Plant and Equipment required
to be measured at current value is revalued at least every five years. Valuations of land and buildings are carried
out on behalf of the Commissioner by Mr. C. Smith BSc MRICS, Carigiet Cowen, Telford House, Riverside,
Warwick Road, Carlisle CA1 2BT and were carried out in accordance with the methodologies and bases for
estimation set out in the professional standards of the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors (RICS). Valuations
of vehicles, plant, furniture and equipment are based on historic cost as a proxy for fair value. The basis of the
valuations is set out in the accounting policies. The table below sets out details of the land and buildings
valuations undertaken over the five year rolling programme.

Valuations Rolling PCC/Group Total

Land Vehicles IT Furniture Assets Property,
Programme and Equipment Under Plant &

Buildings Technology & Plant Construction Equipment
£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Total Cost or Valuation 5/74,76477[ 8,952 18,984 3,965 2,080 88,745

Accounting Policy - Valuations
Where decreases in value are identified, they are accounted for as follows:

o Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the carrying
amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the accumulated gains).

o Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying amount of
the asset is written down against the relevant function lines(s) in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.

The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007 only, the date of its formal
inception. Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into the Capital Adjustment Account.
Revaluation gains and losses are not permitted to have an impact on the Police Fund. The gains and losses
are therefore reversed out of the Police Fund in the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the
Capital Adjustment Account.

Accounting Policy — Valuations Material Estimation Techniques

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements requires disclosure of any estimation techniques applied, such
that if a different methodology had been used a material variance in the amounts disclosed would have
been arrived at. For property valuations the only material estimation techniques used is as follows:

All operational buildings are revalued on a rolling five-year programme and the estimation techniques
used are based on the “open market value in existing use” or in the case of specialised operational police
properties “depreciated replacement cost” which is consistent with proper accounting practice. The
professional valuer, Mr. C. Smith of Carigiet Cowen, applied these valuation methods.
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9.b Impairment Review

The Commissioner’s professional valuer, Mr. C. Smith BSc MRICS, Carigiet Cowen, Telford House, Riverside,
Warwick Road, Carlisle CA1 2BT, has made an assessment of the possible effects of material impairment to land
and buildings during the financial year. His assessment was based on a number of specific criteria, which, in his
opinion, could affect the valuation of assets. The outcome of the assessment process is the valuer has concluded
that there are no impairments. Following the December 2015 flooding, the valuer impaired the Workington
premises on a permanent basis reflecting an increase in the perceived risk of future flooding, this impairment
has now been incorporated into the 2018/19 revaluation of that premises.

Accounting Policy - Impairment

Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired.
Where indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be material, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated and, where this is less than the carrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss is
recognised for the shortfall.

Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for as follows:

o Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the carrying
amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the accumulated gains).

o Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying amount of
the asset is written down against the relevant function line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.

Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently by a revaluation gain, the reversal is credited to the
relevant function line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount of the
original loss, adjusted for depreciation (if material) that would have been charged if the loss had not been
recognised.

Impairment losses are not a charge against Council Tax. The balance on the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement arising from an impairment loss is appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account
through the Movement in Reserves Statement.

9.c Property, Plant and Equipment in the Ownership of the Police and Crime Commissioner
A brief analysis of the Commissioner's principal assets as at 31 March 2019 is set out below:

. : . PCC/Group
Property, Plant and Equipment in Ownership of As at 31 March

PCC 2018 2019
Number Number

_HQ,TPAHQ & Larger Police Stations e O ! 9: .
‘Other Police Stations 9:; 9
OtherPolice Stations . .1 . W
_[Police Houses and other Properties 111
_Surplus Properties/ Held for Sale/ Investment Properties 3 S 1
‘Vehicles 359 323
VehiCles 03590 323

)
¢
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9.d Effects of Changes in Estimates
There have been no material changes in estimates in the 2018/19 accounts.

9.e Gain / Loss on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment
The table below analyses the (gain)/loss on sale of property, plant and equipment for the year ended 31 March
2019.

_ PCC/Group
Gain/Loss on Sale of Property, Net Book Proceeds of (Gain) / Loss

Plant and Equipment Value Costs of Sale Sale 2018/19
£000s £000s £000s £000s

‘Land and Buildings

The comparative figures for 2017/18 are set out in the table below:

. PCC/Group
Gam/Loss on Sale of PrOpertV. Net Book Proceeds of (Gain) / Loss

Plant and Equipment Value Costs of Sale Sale 2017/18
£000s £000s £000s £000s

éLand and Buildings

Note in 2018/19 £132k (£71k in 2017/18) of receipts from proceeds of sale included in the above table were
individually below the £10k threshold for recognition as capital receipts and have therefore been treated as
revenue income. This explains why the capital receipts recorded in note 7 show £659k (£535k in 2017/18) rather
than £791k (£606k in 2017/18) as above.

Accounting Policy - Capital Receipts

Amounts received for a disposal in excess of £10,000 are categorised as Capital Receipts. The balance of
receipts is required to be credited to the Capital Receipts Reserve, and can then only be used for new capital
investment or set aside to reduce the underlying need to borrow (the capital financing requirement).
Receipts are appropriated to the reserve from the Police Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves
Statement.
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10 Assets Held for Sale
Assets held for sale relate to land and buildings assets that are available for immediate sale in their present
condition subject to terms that are usual and customary for sales of such assets. The assets are being actively
marketed for a sale at a price that is reasonable in relation to its current fair value. The sale is expected to
qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification. The table below
shows the movement on Assets Held for Sale in 2018/19 with comparative information for 2017/18.

PCC/Group
As at 31 March
2018 2019

Assets Held for Sale

£000s £000s At 31 March 2019
there were no assets
X classified as held for
Balance outstanding at start of year 1,546 961 sale.
Newly classified as held for sale 163 0
Assets sold (748) (961)
Balance outstanding at end of year 961 (0]

Accounting Policy - Disposal and Non-Current Assets Held for Sale

When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is reclassified as an Asset Held for Sale. The asset is
revalued immediately before reclassification and then carried at the lower of this amount and fair value less
costs to sell. Where there is a subsequent decrease to fair value less cost to sell, the loss is posted to the
Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Gains in fair
value are recognised only up to the amount of any losses previously recognised in the Surplus or Deficit on
Provision of Services. Depreciation is not charged on Assets held for Sale.

If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as Assets Held for Sale, they are reclassified back to non-

current assets and valued at the lower of:

o their carrying amount before they were classified as held for sale. In this case the carrying amount is
adjusted for depreciation, amortisation or revaluations that would have been recognised had they
not been classified as Held for Sale.

o their recoverable amount at the date of the decision not to sell.

Assets that are to be abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as Assets Held for Sale.

When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet
(whether Property, Plant and Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is written off to the Other Operating
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on
disposal. Disposal costs are shown in other operating expenditure in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement. Receipts from disposals (if any) are credited to the same line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off against the
carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal). In line with Statutory Instrument 2010 No 454, disposal
costs of up to 4% of the sale proceeds are financed from capital receipts. Any revaluation gains accumulated
for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account. The written-off
value of disposals is not a charge against Council Tax, as the cost of non-current assets is fully provided for
under separate arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are appropriated to the Capital Adjustment
Account from the Police Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.
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11 Intangible Assets
The Commissioner accounts for his computer software as intangible assets, to the extent that the software is
not an integral part of a particular IT system and accounted for as part of the hardware item within Property,
Plant and Equipment. The intangible assets include computer software development and acquisitions. All
software is given a finite useful life (5 years), based on assessments of the period that the software is expected
to be of use to the Commissioner. The carrying amount of intangible assets is amortised on a straight line basis
and is charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

A summary of the movements in intangible assets during the year and the position as at 31 March 2019 (with
comparatives for 2017/18) is set out in the table below:

PCC/Group

Intangible Assets 2017/18  2018/19
£000s £000s

Intangible Assets are those
which do not have physical
substance but are
controlled as a result of
past events (e.g. software
licences) where
expenditure is capitalised
when it is expected that
future economic benefits
or service potential will

~~§~~M,V,“N“NWW~~~,V,MMM_MM;WNNMﬂ MMMMM S : flow from the asset.
{Amortisations for the period i (121) (323):

Amortisation is the
practice of reducing the
value of assets to reflect
their reduced worth over

| -Grosscarryingamount 1 5027, S | [T e
i -Accumulated amortisation i | (3,024),  (3,093); same as depreciation.
2,003 2,743:

Accounting Policy - Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are initially measured at cost amounts and are only revalued where the fair value of the
asset can be determined by an active market. The depreciable amount of an intangible asset is amortised
over its useful life (usually 5 years) to the relevant function(s) in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement. Once intangible assets have been fully amortised, at the end of their useful lives,
the gross book value and accumulated amortisation for those assets will be written out of the asset
register. There will be no impact on the core financial statements (balance sheet) as a result of this as the
net book value will already be nil.

Where expenditure on intangible assets qualifies as capital expenditure for statutory purposes,
amortisation, impairment losses and disposal gains and losses are not permitted to have an impact on the
Police Fund Balance. The amortisation, impairment and gains and losses on disposal are therefore
reversed out of the Police Fund in the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital
Adjustment Account and (for any sale proceeds over £10,000) the Capital Receipts Reserve. An asset is
tested for impairment, whenever there is an indication that the asset might be impaired — any losses
recognised are posted to the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement.

In accordance with the terms of the Commissioner’s funding arrangement with the Chief Constable, all
intangible assets are held by the Commissioner.
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12

Private Finance Initiative (PFI)

Private Finance Initiatives (PFI) are arrangements to receive services where the responsibility for making
available the property, plant and equipment needed to provide the services passes to the PFl contractor.

There is currently one PFlI scheme recognised on the Balance Sheet and this relates to the West Cumbria
Territorial Policing Area HQ at Workington. Under the terms of the Commissioner’s funding arrangement to the
Chief Constable the Commissioner controls all property and, accordingly, the PFI building is recorded on the
Balance Sheet of the Commissioner. A charge is made by the Commissioner to the Chief Constable in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for the Chief Constable’s use of the building and the services
provided.

The former Police Authority entered an agreement for the construction and subsequent servicing of the building
in September 2001 under a PFl arrangement. Under the agreement the PFI provider constructed the facility,
and undertakes to make the building available to the Commissioner in a specified condition for a 25 year period
in return for a monthly unitary charge payment made by the Commissioner. In addition the provider delivers a
range of services in relation to the building which are specified in the PFl contract. At the end of the contract
period the Commissioner has the right to acquire the building at 50% of its market value.

The PFI asset is recognised on the Commissioner’s balance sheet along with a corresponding PFI finance lease
liability which recognises the Commissioner’s outstanding liability to pay for the asset. The PFI asset is
depreciated and revalued in the same way as any other asset in accordance with accounting policies.

The amount paid to the PFl operator each year (known as the unitary charge payment) is now split into four
elements in the accounts as follows:

e Service Charges — the fair value of the services received during the year which are debited to the relevant
function in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

e Finance cost — an interest charge on the outstanding Balance Sheet liability, debited to the Financing and
Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

e Payment towards liability — applied to write down the Balance Sheet liability towards the PFl operator (the
profile of write downs is calculated using the same principles as for a finance lease). However, a corresponding
increase in the minimum revenue provision is made in accordance with the Commissioner’s minimum revenue
provision policy.

e Lifecycle replacement costs — a proportion of the amounts payable is posted to the Balance sheet as a
prepayment and then recognised as additions to Property, Plant and Equipment when the relevant works are
eventually carried out.

The following information is disclosed in relation to the PFl asset.

12.a Movement on Fixed Assets

The value and movement in value of the asset held under the PFl agreement is analysed in note 9 above.
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12.b PFI Finance Lease Liability
The value of Liabilities resulting from the PFI Agreement are shown in the table below:

PCC/Group
As at 31 March
2018 2019
£000s £000s

PFl Lease Liability

'Balance at the start of the year

1 :
(4,887) | (4,745):

= e e e e S s ssnsssssgsssssssssssnssesSesseseeseos frmrmrmmemsmsmeses et

é

12.c Payments Due to be made under PFI Contract
An estimate of the future payments to be made under the PFl contract are shown in the table below. Where
applicable an estimated inflation index of 2% (linked to the GDP deflator) per annum has been applied to the
payments.

PCC/Group
Payments Due under PFI Repayment Interest Service

Contract of Liability Payments Costs
£000s £000s

‘Repayable within one year
‘Between two and five years

The repayment of liability figures include a sum of £2,910k between 6 and 10 years which recognises that there
is reasonable certainty that the Commissioner will exercise his right to purchase the PFI building at the end of
the PFl contract period. See critical judgement note 2 (page 41) for further explanation.

Accounting Policy - Private Finance Initiative (PFI) and Similar Contracts

PFl and similar contracts are agreements to receive services, where the responsibility for making available the
property, plant and equipment needed to provide the services passes to the PFl contractor. As the services
that are provided under the PFl scheme are deemed under the PFl contract to be controlled, the asset is
carried on the Balance Sheet as part of Property, Plant and Equipment.

The original recognition of these assets at fair value (based on the cost to purchase the property, plant and
equipment) was balanced by the recognition of a liability for amounts due to the scheme operator to pay for
the capital investment.

Non-current assets recognised on the Balance Sheet are re-valued and depreciated in the same way as
property, plant and equipment.

In accordance with accounting practice, lifecycle replacement costs are now recognised when they are
actually incurred. The Commissioner receives specific government funding from MHCLG as a contribution to
the costs of financing the scheme.
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13 Leases

13.a Finance Leases
The Commissioner has no material finance leases to be disclosed.

13.b Operating leases
The Commissioner utilises land and buildings and equipment assets under operating leases. The land and
buildings are typically short to medium term rentals of buildings. The figures do however include the lease of
land at Durranhill from Carlisle City Council upon which the North TPA HQ and custody suite was constructed.
This lease runs for a period of 125 years until March 2132 and the annual lease payments are currently £31k p.a.
The equipment includes livescan fingerprint machines and photocopiers.

The future minimum lease payments due under non-cancellable leases in future years are:

PCC/Group
As at 31 March

Future Minimum Lease Payments 2018 2019
£000s £000s

The expenditure charged to the Net Cost of Police Services in relation to these leases was:

. . PCC/Group  PCC/Group
Lease Expenditure Charged to Net Cost of Police i B

Services £000s £000s

‘Minimum Lease Payments

There are two categories of leases:
Operating leases are where the risks
and rewards of ownership stay with the
lessor and the annual rental charges are
charged through the CI&ES
Finance leases are where the risks and
rewards of ownership are transferred to
the lessee and where the assets are
recognised on the balance sheet of the
lessee.

-

North Cumbria Territorial Policing Area HQ — Carlisle
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Accounting Policy - Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the lessor to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and building elements are considered separately for
classification. Agreements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an asset in return
for payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of
specific assets.

Finance leases (as Lessee)

Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases is recognised on the Balance Sheet at the
commencement of the lease at its fair value measured at the lease’s inception (or the present value of the
minimum lease payments, if lower). The asset recognised is matched by a liability for the obligation to pay the
lessor. Initial direct costs are added to the carrying amount of the asset. Premiums paid on entry into a lease are
applied to writing down the lease liability. Contingent rents are charged as expenses in the periods in which they
are incurred.

Lease payments are apportioned between:
o A charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property, plant or equipment — applied to write down the
lease liability, and

o Afinance charge (debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement).

Property, plant and equipment recognised under finance leases is accounted for using the policies applied
generally to such assets, subject to depreciation being charged over the lease term if this is shorter than the asset’s
estimated useful life (where ownership of the asset does not transfer at the end of the lease period).

Council tax is not required to be raised to cover depreciation or revaluation and impairment losses arising on
leased assets. Instead, a prudent annual contribution is made from revenue funds towards the deemed capital
investment in accordance with statutory requirements. Depreciation and revaluation and impairment losses are
therefore substituted by a revenue contribution in the Police Fund balance, by way of an adjusting transaction
within the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference between the
two.

Operating Leases (as Lessee)

o Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
as an expense of the functions benefitting from use of the leased property, plant or equipment. Charges
are made on a straight line basis over the life of the lease.

Finance Leases (as Lessor)

o There are currently no finance leases as a lessor.

Operating Leases (as Lessor)

o Rental income received under operating leases are credited to the other operating expenditure line within
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, except where the property has been classified as
an investment property, in which case the income is shown in the financing and investment income and
expenditure line.
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Short-term Debtors

Debtors reflect amounts owing to the Police and Crime Commissioner but not yet received at the end of the
financial year.

A breakdown of the amounts owing to the Commissioner as at 31 March 2019 is set out in the table below:

PCC Group
As at 31 March As at 31 March
Short-term Debtors 5018 5019 5018 5019
£000s £000s £000s £000s

Trade Receivables 6,462 4,978 6,462 4,978

Prepayments/Payments in Advance 3,225 1,682 3,225 1,682

Other Receivable Amounts

- Police Pensioners Prepayment 2,353 2,474 2,353 2,474

- Employees (accumulated compensating absences) 118 158 118 158

- Local Taxpayers (#) 1,971 2,403 1,971 2,403

- VAT Reimbursement 686 359 686 359

Less Impairment Allowance for Doubtful Debts:

- Trade Receivables (3) (2) (3) (2)

- Local Taxpayers (#) (868) (1,057) (868) (1,057)

13,944 10,995 13,944 10,995

Balances Owed From Chief Constable:

- Re CC Share of External Creditors 11,542 9,358 0 0
- Re balance of Funding 4,500 3,003 0 0
Total Debtors 29,986 23,356 13,944 10,995

# The debtors in respect of Local Taxpayers represent the Commissioner’s share of the debtors recorded by the
six Cumbrian District Councils in respect of Council Tax. This figure is reduced by the Commissioner’s share of
their respective impairment allowance for doubtful debts. In a new requirement for 2018/19 the Commissioner
must show the age profile of debtors in respect of local taxation.
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15

Debtors for Local Taxation
The past due but not impaired amount for local taxation (council tax) can be analysed by age as follows:

PCC/Group
. 31 March 2018 31 March 2019
Council Tax Debtors £000< £000<
Less than Three Months 30 49
Three to Six Months 0 26
Six Months to One Year 41 363
Less than One Year 857 564
More than One Year 1,043 1,401
1,971 2,403

Please note, in the above table some district councils have provided the split of debtors over the wider
categories of: less than 3 months, 3 to 6 months, 6 to 12 months and over 1 year whilst others have simply
provided figures for under and over 1 year. Itis hoped that from the 2019/20 statement of accounts the aged
debtor information will be provided on a consistent basis.

Short-term Creditors

Creditors reflect amounts owed by the Police and Crime Commissioner for goods and services received
which had not been paid for at the end of the financial year.

An analysis of the amounts owed by the Commissioner as at 31 March 2019 is set out in the table below:

Short-term Creditors PCC Group
As at 31 March As at 31 March

2018 2019 2018

£000s £000s £000s
Trade Payables (11,508) (9,498) (11,508) (9,498)
Receipts in Advance (955) (325) (955) (325)

Other Payables

- Employees (accumulated compensating absences) (2,874) (3,222) (2,874) (3,222)
- Local Taxpayers (691) (790) (691) (790)
- HMRC PAYE Amounts Due 2,122 2,234 2,122 2,234
(13,906) (11,601) (13,906) (11,601)

Balances Owed to Chief Constable:

- Re CC Share of External & Employee Debtors (4,386) (2,888) 0 0

- Re balance of Funding (10,072) (7,477) 0 0

Total Creditors (28,364) (21,966) (13,906) (11,601)
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16 Provisions
The Commissioner is able to maintain provisions to meet expected future liabilities. The Code of Practice on
Local Authority Accounting advises that the value of any provisions be charged to the appropriate part of the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in anticipation of the liability having to be met in the future.
The classification of provisions is consistent with the Code of Practice.

A brief description of the purpose of the individual provisions as at 31 March 2019 is provided below:

= |nsurance liabilities — this provision has been established to meet a number of eventualities from ongoing
claims which are not covered by external insurers. In particular, liability risks up to £100k per event (this
figure was £25k until 1 November 2014 when the policy excess was increased from £25k to £100k) are
retained by the Commissioner and met internally. The provision for insurance liabilities is subject to an
actuarial review on a bi-ennial basis to determine the most appropriate level for the provision based on
the circumstances at the time of the review.

= Legal Claims —this provision has been established to cover the potential costs relating to a number of legal
claims that are currently ongoing.

= Employee Related — This provision has been established to cover the potential costs in relation to the
capital ill health charge in respect of three cases where the constabulary has been required to retire a
police officer on ill health grounds. Whilst the initial decision was made in March, a potential to appeal
the decision will mean that the ultimate cost will fall in to 2019/20.

The table below shows the movements during the year on each of the group provisions and the position as at
31 March 2019.

Additional
Provisions
Made 2018/19

Balance
as at
31/03/19

Unused
Amounts
Reversed in
2018/19

Amounts Used
in 2018/19

Balance
as at
01/04/18

Provisions

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

Police and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria — Statement of Accounts 2018/19

Insurance Liabilities (279) (105) 75 30 (279)
Legal Claims (1,119) (101) 337 64 (819)
Employee Related 0 (235) 0 0 (235)
Total Provisions (1,398) (441) 412 94 (1,333)
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The comparative information for year ended 31 March 2018 is as follows:

Balance Additional Amounts Used Unused Balance
as at Provisions in 2017/18 Amounts as at
Provisio ns 01/04/17 Made 2017/18 Reversed in 31/03/18
2017/18
£000s £000s £000s £000s
Insurance Liabilities (484) (145) 43 307 (279)
Legal Claims (851) (331) 13 50 (1,119)
Total Provisions (1,335) (476) 56 357 (1,398)

Accounting Policy — Provisions

Provisions are made when an event has taken place that gives a legal or constructive obligation that
probably requires settlement by transfer of economic benefits or service potential, and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation. For instance, involvement in a court case that could
eventually result in the making of a settlement or the payment of compensation.

Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate function line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement in the year that awareness of the obligation arises, and are measured at the best
estimate at the balance sheet date of the expenditure required to settle the obligation, taking into account
the relevant risks and uncertainties. Details of provisions made during the year are shown below.

When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried on the Balance Sheet.
Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial year where it becomes less than probable
that a transfer of economic benefits will subsequently be required (or a lower settlement than anticipated
is made), the provision is reversed and credited back to the relevant function.

Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be recovered from another
party (e.g. from an insurance claim), this is only recognised as income for the relevant service if it is virtually
certain that reimbursement will be received if the obligation is settled.
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17

18

Financial Instruments

Financial Instruments are contracts that give rise to a financial asset in one entity and a financial liability
in another. The term covers both financial assets such as loans and receivables and financial liabilities
such as creditors and borrowings.

Under International Financial reporting Standards a full set of disclosure notes are required in respect of financial
instruments. These notes for the PCC/Group are included in Section A of a separate technical appendix at Annex
B on pages 106 to 111.
The disclosures include:

e The Categories of Financial Instrument

e Gains and Losses on Financial Instruments

e Fair value of Assets and Liabilities Carried at Amortised Cost

e Disclosure of the Nature and Extent of Risks Arising from Financial Instruments

Pensions
The PCC/Group participates in the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for Police Staff and three pensions
schemes in respect of Police Officers. Under International Financial reporting Standards a full set of disclosure
notes are required in respect of Pensions. These notes for the PCC/Group are included in a separate technical
appendix at Annex C on pages 112 to 123.
The disclosures include:

e Details of the pension schemes

e A summary of accounting entries in respect of pensions

e Pensions assets and liabilities recognised in the balance sheet

e Reconciliation of the Fair Value of scheme assets

e Basis for estimating assets and liabilities

e A summary of principal assumptions used by the scheme actuary

e Sensitivity analysis in relation to pensions

e Impact on the Commissioner’s Cash Flows
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19 Usable Reserves

Usable reserves result from the Commissioner’s activities and are available to be spent in future years.

In addition to the Commissioner’s Police Fund, which the Commissioner aims to maintain at 3% of budgeted
expenditure, the following reserves are maintained and accounted for in line with the Code of practice.

= Capital Receipts Reserve — this reserve is used to hold capital receipts until they are utilised to finance
capital expenditure or reduce borrowing.

= Capital Grants Unapplied Account — this reserve is used to hold capital grants until they are utilised to
finance capital expenditure.

= Capital Reserve — this reserve is a revenue backed earmarked reserve that has been set aside to fund
capital expenditure.

= Earmarked Reserves - The Commissioner has a number of earmarked reserves that exist both to provide
a contingency to cushion the effect of unexpected events and to provide a mechanism to build up funds
to meet expected liabilities. The Commissioner’s earmarked reserves have been formulated in conjunction
with the CIPFA guidance on Reserves and Provisions. Details of the earmarked reserves in existence and
a brief description as to their purpose is included in note 8 to the accounts (see pages 57-58).

The movement in the Commissioner’s Group and Single Entity Usable Reserves is detailed in the Movement in
Reserves Statement (see pages 35 to 36), and the disclosure notes relating to Adjustments between the
Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under regulations (Note 7) and Transfer to/from Earmarked reserves (Note
8).

Accounting Policy - Reserves

Specific amounts are set aside as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover contingencies. Reserves
are created by appropriating amounts out of the Police Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves
Statement. When expenditure to be financed from a reserve is incurred, it is charged to the appropriate
function in that year to score against the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The reserve is then appropriated back into the Police
Fund balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement so that there is no net charge against Council Tax
for the expenditure.

Reserves are classified in the Balance Sheet and the Movement in Reserves Statement as either ‘usable’
(those that can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce local taxation) and ‘unusable’ (those held for
technical accounting purposes). Under the Commissioner’s funding arrangement to the Chief Constable
all usable reserves are controlled by the Commissioner and recorded in the balance sheet of the
Commissioner.
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20

20.a

Unusable Reserves

Unusable reserves derive from accounting adjustments and are not available to be spent.

Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non-current assets, financial instruments,
retirement and employee benefits and do not represent usable resources for the Commissioner.

Revaluation Reserve
The Revaluation Reserve contains the overall gains made by the Commissioner arising from increases in the
value of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets. The balance is reduced when assets with
accumulated gains are:

e revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost,
e used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed through depreciation, or
e disposed of and the gains are realised.

The Reserve records the unrealised net gain from the revaluation of non-current assets accumulated since 1
April 2007, the date that the reserve was created. Accumulated gains arising before that date are consolidated
into the balance on the Capital Adjustment Account. The balance is made up of individual credit balances
associated with specific assets and will be equal to the difference between the current value net book value
(NBV) and the historic cost NBV for all assets.

The movements on the reserve during 2018/19 and the previous year are set out in the table below:

PCC/Group PCC/Group

Revaluation Reserve 2017/18  2018/19
£000s £000s
‘Balance at Start of Year 9,448! 9,452
 Upwardrevaluationofassets . 108) 4,480;
~ Downward revaluation of assets and impairment losses not charged tothe ~~~ © 0. | (544); |

ESurpIus/Deficit on the Provision of Services

e e m A A AP PP PP AP AP PP A PP PP PP PP PP PP PP PP AP PP PP PP PP PP PP P A U _ _

ESurpIus or deficit on revaluation of non-current assets not posted to the 108 3,936
ESurpIus/Deficit on the Provision of Servcies ‘ ’ :

o n A A A AR A AR AR AR AR AR A AR AP AP AP AP AR AP AR AP PP A AP PP A AP PP AP AP AP AP PP AP A AP PP PP PP AP AP PP PP PP PP A B e RN NNRINMNS,

e A A A A A A A A AR A A AP A AP AP A A A A A PP PP P PP AP AP A AP AP P AP PP AP A AP PP i e i NN NSO, |

iAccumulated gains on assets sold or scrapped (104) (187)
EAmount written off to Capital Adjustment Account (104) (187)
_ BalanceatEndofYear . 942 13201
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20.b Capital Adjustment Account

The Capital Adjustment Account (CAA) absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements
for accounting for the consumption of non-current assets and for financing the acquisition, construction or
enhancement of those assets under statutory provisions. The Account is debited with the cost of acquisition,
construction or enhancement as depreciation, impairment losses and amortisations are charged to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (with reconciling postings from the Revaluation Reserve to
convert fair value figures to a historical cost basis). The account is credited with the amounts set aside by the
Commissioner as finance for the costs of acquisition, construction and enhancement. The account contains
revaluation gains accumulated on Property, Plant and Equipment before 1 April 2007, the date that the
Revaluation reserve was created to hold such gains. Note 7 provides details of the source of all the transactions
posted to the account apart from those involving the revaluation reserve.

The movements on the account during 2018/19 and the previous year are set out in the table below:

PCC/Group PCC/Group
Capital Adjustment Account 2017/18  2018/19

£000s £000s
iBalance at Start of Year 36,354 37, 026

I At bbbt St Al £ ,.“,,.“,,.“7,.“,4.‘, -

'Reversal of items relating to capital expenditure debited or credited to the
,Comprehenswe Income and Expenditure Statement

...................................................................................................................................................................................................................

harges for depreciation and impairment of non-current assets (4,514);

evaluation gains/(losses) on Property, Plant and Equipment 720!

Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or sale as part of the gain
:or loss on disposal to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

jUS mg amounts written out of he Revalua ion Reserve

Capltal financing applied in the year:

:Capltal grants and contributions credited to the Comprehensive Income and 0 575;
EExpenditure Statement that have been applied to capital financing i i :
;&-bb-l-l-c;ﬁar-l- of grants to capital financing from the Capital Grants Unapplied P o 0
‘Account ' ' '
Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment charged againstthe 423|432
EGeneral Fund i i '
""" ééﬁ&gl'E&(kjéﬁé&HEEE'HA}QE&Eééfr'{é{'iﬁé"ﬁé'l}'éé"ﬁij'ri'd""""""""""""""""""""""""""""'"""""""1'3',55'5"'""""""""z';é'é'é"m
5 N
..... BalanceatEndofYear ... 37026 35523 |
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20.c Collection Fund Adjustment Account
The Collection Fund Adjustment Account manages the differences arising from the recognition of Council Tax
income in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as it falls due from Council Tax payers
compared with the statutory arrangements.

The end of year balance on the account reflects the Commissioner’s aggregate share of the Surplus/(Deficit) on
the Collection fund operated by each of the 6 district councils (or billing authorities) that has yet to be
distributed. The movements on the account during 2018/19 and the previous year are set out in the table
below:

PCC/Group PCC/Group

Collection Fund Adjustment Account 2017/18  2018/19
£000s 0 [0[0]3
_BalanceatStartofYear T 720 463
‘Amount by which council tax income credited to the Comprehensive Income and E (257); (513):
EExpenditure Statement is different from council tax income calculated for the year E i 5
Ein accordance with statutory requirements E
S S A
,v,v;,vlialengsit_fp_@flser ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, J{mwvvﬂﬁ%%vvvvv~_.(,5,<1)vgw

A further breakdown of the movement in year by district council, is provided in note 28 on page 92.

Accounting Policy — Collection Fund

Council Tax is collected from local taxpayers by the billing authorities (district councils). The billing authorities in

England are required by statute to maintain a separate fund, known as the Collection Fund, for the collection and

distribution of amounts due in respect of Council Tax. The fund’s key features relevant to accounting for Council Tax in

the core financial statements of the billing authorities are:

o In its capacity as a billing authority the council acts as agent; it collects and distributes Council Tax income on
behalf of the major preceptors (County Council and the Police and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria) and itself.

o While the Council Tax income for the year credited to the collection fund is accrued income for the year,
regulations determine when it should be released from the collection fund and transferred to the general fund
of the billing authority or paid out of the collection fund to major preceptors.

o Up to 2008/09 the SORP required the Council Tax income included in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement to be that which under regulation was required to be transferred from the collection
Fund to the general fund of the billing authority. The Major precepting bodies were simply required to show
the precept received from the billing authority during the year.

From the year commencing 1 April 2009, the Council Tax income included in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement for the year shall be the accrued income for the year. The difference between the income
included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the amount required by regulation to be
credited to the collection fund shall be taken to the Collection Fund Adjustment Account and included as a reconciling
item in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Since the collection of Council Tax is, in substance, an agency arrangement, cash collected by the billing authority from
Council Tax debtors belongs proportionately to the billing authority and the major preceptors. There will be therefore
a debtor/creditor position between the billing authorities and each major preceptor to be recognised since the net cash
paid to each major preceptor in the year will not be its share of cash collected from Council Taxpayers.

The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement shows the share of cash collected in relation to Council Tax for
the year. A transfer has been made to the collection fund adjustment account to record the amount due to/from the
six districts (billing authorities) as at the year end. The debtors and creditors contained within the balance sheet now
shows the share of Council Tax debtors (less an adjustment for bad and doubtful debts), Council Tax creditors,
prepayments and a recognition of the amounts owed to or from the billing authorities.
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20.d Accumulated Absences Account
The short-term accumulated absences account absorbs the differences that would otherwise arise on the Police
Fund balance from accruing for compensated absences earned but not taken in the year, e.g. annual leave, flexi
leave, time off in lieu and rest day entitlements carried forward at 31 March. Statutory arrangements require
that the impact on the Police Fund Balance is neutralised by transfers to or from the Account.

PCC PCC Group Group

Accumulated Absences Account 2017/18  2018/19  2017/18  2018/19
£000s £000s £000s £000s

‘Balance at Start of Year

ettlement or cancellation of accrual made at the end of the
receeding year :

Amounts accrued at the end of the current year i (6)

EAmount by which officer remuneration charged to the 1
EComprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement onan |
Eaccruals basis is different from remuneration chargeable in
Ethe year in accordance with statutory requirements

..............................

: alance at End of Year (6)

Accounting Policy - Employee Benefits payable during Employment

Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year-end. They include
such benefits as salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave, bonuses and non-monetary benefits (e.g.
cars) for current employees and are recognised as an expense for functions in the year in which employees
render service. An accrual is made for the cost of holiday entitlements, time off in lieu, flexi leave and rest
days in lieu earned by employees but not taken before the year-end, which employees can carry forward
into the next financial year. The accrual is made at the salary rate applicable at the balance sheet date. The
employee accrual is then reversed out through the movement in reserves statement so that it is not charged
against council tax.
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20.e Pensions Reserve

The Pensions Reserves (LGPS and Police) absorb the timing differences arising from the different arrangements
for accounting for post-employment benefits and for funding in accordance with statutory provisions. The
Commissioner accounts for post-employment benefits in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement as the benefits are earned by employees accruing years of service, updating the liabilities recognised
to reflect inflation, changing assumptions and investment returns on any resources set aside to meet the costs.
However, statutory arrangements require benefits earned to be financed as the Commissioner makes
employer’s contributions to pension funds or eventually pays any pensions for which it is directly responsible.
The debit balance on the Pension Reserve therefore shows a substantial shortfall in the benefits earned by past
and current employees and the resources the Commissioner has set aside to meet them. The statutory
arrangements will ensure that funding will have been set aside by the time the benefits come to be paid.

PCC Group Group
LGPS Pensions LGPS Pensions Police Pensions

Pensions Reserve 2017/18 2018/19 2017/18 2018/19 2017/18 2018/19

£000s £000s  £000s  £000s £000s £000s
(1,258)| (1,098): (47,136)| (41,107); (1,243,120); (1,187,670):
2 e | s 3 =

Adjusted Balance at Startof Year | (1,258)

{Remeasurement of the net defined 269
{pension benefit liability/asset i

EReversaI of items relating to retirement
‘benefits debited or credited to the Surplus
‘or Deficit on the Provision of Services in |
Ethe Comprehensive Income and i
‘Expenditure Statement (182)

EEmponer s pension contributions and i : :

‘direct payments to pensmners payable in 73js 615 2944 3, 054 31, 240 31,4 410E
- S ﬁ — B

: aIance atEnd of Year

(8, 724) (54, 490) (106, 990)

20.f Available for Sale Financial Instruments Reserve
The Available for Sale Financial Instruments Reserve contains the losses made by the Commissioner arising from
decreases in the value of its investments that have quoted market prices or otherwise do not have fixed or
determinable payments. The balance is reduced when investments with accumulated losses are:
e Revalued upwards and the losses are recovered.
o Disposed of and the losses are recovered.

PCC/Group
Available for Sale Financial Instruments Reserve 2017/18 2018/19
£000s £000s
gBaIance at Start of Year (18): (11)
* 'Revaluation of investments not charged to the Surplus/Deficit on the Provision .~ 7 """"""""""" 11

‘of Services

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
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21

21.a

21.b

21.c

21.d

21.e

Related Party Transactions

The Commissioner is required to disclose material transactions with related parties — bodies or individuals that
have the potential to control or influence the Commissioner or to be controlled or influenced by the
Commissioner. Disclosure of these transactions allows readers to assess the extent to which the Commissioner
might have been constrained in his ability to operate independently or might have secured the ability to limit
another party’s ability to bargain freely with the Commissioner.

Chief Constable for Cumbria Constabulary

The Police and Crime Commissioner has direct control over the Chief Constable’s finances, providing funding for
all running costs and taking responsibility for funding of all pensions' liabilities. The Commissioner is responsible
for setting the Police and Crime Plan. The Chief Constable retains operational independence and operates within
the funding arrangement set by the Commissioner, to deliver the aims and objectives set out in the Police and
Crime Plan.

Central Government

Central government has effective control over the general operations of the Commissioner — it is responsible
for providing the statutory framework within which the Commissioner operates and provides the majority of its
funding in the form of grants. Grants received from government departments are set out in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement (page 33). Government Grants included within the Net Cost of Services are
detailed in note 27 below, the extent to which these grants are outstanding at the end of the year is recorded
in short-term debtors note 14.

Members

The Commissioner has eight appointed Members, four who serve on the Joint Audit Committee and four who
serve on the Ethics and Integrity Panel. These members are required to declare any direct financial relationship
through outside bodies or companies with the Commissioner. No material transactions have been reported in
respect of the 2018/19 financial year. The total members allowances paid in 2018/19 are shown in note 22.

Officers and Employees

Employees of the Commissioner and senior officers and staff of the Constabulary were asked to declare any
direct financial relationship through outside bodies or companies with the Commissioner. No material
transactions have been reported in respect of the 2018/19 financial year.

Other Public Bodies

The Commissioner’s transactions with the Cumbria Local Government Pension Scheme (administered by County
Council) are shown in the pension related disclosure notes included within the Technical Annex (Annex C) pages
112-123.

The amounts received in respect of council tax income from the six Cumbrian District Councils are detailed in
note 28.

The Commissioner has included within the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement his respective
share of costs in relation to collaborative arrangements with other forces/councils. In particular these include:
e The PCC for Cheshire — North West Underwater Search Unit, Northwest Armed Policing Collaboration,
Northwest Strategic Automatic Number Plate Recognition (ANPR) and Regional Emergency Services
Network (ESN).

e The PCC for Merseyside — Regional Crime Unit, Regional Intelligence Unit, Prison Intelligence Unit,
Technical Support Unit, Protected Persons Unit, Government Agency Intelligence Network (GAIN),
Confiscation Unit, Regional Assets Recovery Team, Operational Security (OPSEY), Cyber Crime, Regional
Fraud Team.

e The PCC for Lancashire — Learning & Development Collaboration.

e Cumbria County Council — Shared Internal Audit Service.

e Durham Constabulary — ICT Collaboration in relation to development of systems.
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23

Members Allowances and Expenses

The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting requires the disclosure of the total amount of members
allowances paid in the year. This is set out in the table below together with a comparative figure for the previous
year.

PCC/Group PCC/Group

Members Allowances 2017/18 2018/19
£000s £000s
Basic Allowance 15 19
Travel and Subsistence 8 7
23 26

The above table includes expenses for the four appointed members of the Joint Audit Committee, the four
appointed members of the Ethics and Integrity Panel together with travel allowances payable to independent
custody visitors. The table above includes the total costs of members and these apply jointly between the
Commissioner and Constabulary.

A full disclosure of allowances and expenses paid to individual members can be found on the Police and Crime
Commissioners website at: https://cumbria-pcc.gov.uk/finance-governance/allowances/.

Disclosure of Remuneration for Senior Employees

The following tables sets out the remuneration disclosures for Senior Officers and Relevant Police Officers whose
salary is more than £50,000 per year. The first table provides the information for 2018/19 and the second
provides comparatives for 2017/18.
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The table below gives the PCC and Group information for 2018/19 in £000s.

Postholder Information Note Salary Expense Benefitsin  Other Total Pension Total
Post Title (including  Allowances Kind Payments Remuneration Contributions Remuneration

Fees & (Police Excluding Including
Allowances) Officers pension pension
Only) Contributions Contributions

Shown in Single Entity Statements of Police & Crime Commissioner

Police & Crime Commissioner 66 1 0 0 67 10 77
PCC Chief Executive (A) 6 74 0 0 0 74 11 85
PCC Chief Executive (B) 6 74 0 0 0 74 11 85
Total PCC 214 1 0 0 215 32 247
Shown in Single Entity Statements of Chief Constable

Chief Constable - Michelle Skeer 153 7 0 3 163 33 196
Deputy Chief Constable 1 117 7 0 0 124 24 148
Temporary Assistant Chief Constable (A) 2 100 8 0 3 111 20 131
Temporary Assistant Chief Constable (B) 3 83 3 1 2 89 17 106
Joint Chief Finance Officer 77 0 0 0 77 12 89
Director of Corporate Support 85 0 0 0 85 13 98
Director of Corporate Improvement 85 0 0 0 85 13 98
Chief Superintendent - Territorial Policing 87 1 1 3 92 19 111
Superintendent - Head of People 79 2 1 0 82 17 99
Temporary Chief Superintendent - Crime Command 4 83 5 0 3 91 17 108
Temporary Chief Superintendent - Territorial Policing 5 82 5 1 2 90 17 107
Director of Legal Services 83 1 1 0 85 13 98|
Total CC 1,114 39 5 16 1,174 215 1,389
Total Group 1,328 40 5 16 1,389 247 1,636
Notes:

1 The Deputy Chief Constable was promoted to DCC w.e.f. 18/09/18 following a period of Temporary
promotion.

2 Temporary Assistant Chief Constable (A) was promoted to T/ACC w.e.f. 03/03/18.

3 Temporary Assistant Chief Constable (B) was promoted to Temp ACC for the period 14/01/19 to 24/03/19
following which he reverted to Superintendent.

4 Temporary Chief Superintendent Crime Command was promoted to the Temp. CS post from 03/03/19.
5 Temporary Chief Superintendent Territorial Policing was promoted to the Temp. CS post from 02/07/18.

6 Therole of Chief Executive to the Commissioner is shared between two individuals each taking responsibility
for six months of the year. For the other six month period each will act as Deputy Chief Executive.

85|Page
Police and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria — Statement of Accounts 2018/19



Notes to the Accounts

The comparative PCC and Group figures for 2017/18 in £000s, are set out in the table below:

Postholder Information Note Salary Expense Salary  Termination Benefits Other Total Pension Total
Post Title (including  Allowances Sacrifice Pay & inKind Payments Remuneration Contributions Remuneration

Fees & Compensation (Police Excluding Including
Allowances) for loss of Officers  pension pension
office Only) Contributions Contributions

Shown in Single Entity ents of Police & Crime Ci

Police & Crime Commissioner ) 65 2 0 0 0 0 67 10 77
PCC Chief Finance Officer 10 20 0 0 45 0 0 65 3 68
PCC Chief Executive (A) 11 46 0 0 0 0 0 46 7 53
PCC Chief Executive (B) 12 65 0 0 0 0 0 65 10 75
PCC Chief Executive (C) 13 66 0 (1) 0 0 0 65 10 75
Total PCC 262 2 (1) 45 0 0 308 40 348
Shown in Single Entity Statements of Chief Constable

Chief Constable (A) 1 141 7 0 0 0 3 151 0 151
Deputy Chief Constable (A) / Chief Constable (B) 2 118 7 0 0 0 3 128 25 153
Temporary Assistant Chief Constable (A) 3 50 2 0 6 0 2 60 11 71
Assistant Chief Constable (A) / Temporary Deputy Chief 4 82 5 0 0 27 0 114 17 131
Constable (B)

Temporary Assistant Chief Constable (B) 5 85 3 0 0 1 3 92 18 110
Joint Chief Finance Officer 6 71 0 0 0 0 0 71 11 82
Director of Corporate Support 82 0 0 0 0 0 82 10 92
Director of Corporate Improvement 82 0 0 0 0 0 82 12 94
Chief Superintendent - Territorial Policing 7 86 2 0 0 1 3 92 18 110
Superintendent - Head of People 75 1 0 0 1 0 77 17 94
Temporary Chief Superintendent - Crime Command 8 56 2 0 0 1 2 61 11 72
Temporary Chief Superintendent - Territorial Policing 9 78 2 0 0 1 3 84 16 100
Director of Legal Services 73 1 0 0 1 0 75 11 86
Total CC 1,079 32 0 6 33 19 1,169 177 1,346
Total Group 1,341 34 (1) 51 33 19 1,477 217 1,694
Notes:

Chief Constable (A) retired from the Constabulary on 31/03/18.

Deputy Chief Constable (A) became Temporary Chief Constable w.e.f. 03/03/18 and Chief Constable (B) from
01/04/18.

3 Temporary Assistant Chief Constable (A) was T/ACC w.e.f. 01/01/17 to 30/06/17, reverting to Chief
Superintendent on 01/07/17 until retirement on 18/10/17.

4 Assistant Chief Constable (A) was appointed on 01/07/17 and was subsequently promoted to Temporary
Deputy Chief Constable 03/03/18.

5 Temporary Assistant Chief Constable (B) was appointed on 03/03/18, prior to this occupied the position of
Chief Superintendent — Crime Command.

6 The Chief Constable’s Chief Finance Officer became the Joint Chief Finance Officer w.e.f. 31/05/17.

7 Chief Superintendent — Territorial Policing was previously Chief Superintendent Operational Benefits
Delivery until 18/06/17.

8 Temporary Chief Superintendent — Crime Command was appointed on 05/06/17 and was subsequently
promoted to Temporary Chief Superintendent on 03/03/18.

9 Temporary Chief Superintendent — Territorial Policing was in post until 18/06/17 and then reverted to the
role of Superintendent Operational Support.

10 The PCC Chief Finance Officer left the organisation on 31/08/17 following a re-structure within the OPCC.
11 Chief Executive (A) retired on 30/09/2017.

12 Chief Executive (B) was chief executive for the period 01/09/17 to 13/03/18, for the remainder of the
financial year, the post holder performed the role of Head of Partnerships and Commissioning.

13 Chief Executive (C) was Chief Executive from 14/03/18, for the remainder of the financial year, the post
holder performed the role of Head of Communications and Business Services.
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Employee Remuneration

The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting requires the disclosure of the number of employees whose
remuneration, excluding pension’s contributions, exceeded £50,000 and senior police officers (defined as those
holding a rank above that of superintendent). This is set out in the table below in bands of £5,000:

2017/18 2018/19
PCC cc CcC Group PCC cc CcC Group

Remuneration Band Police Police Snr Police Police Police Snr Police
Staff Staff Officers Total Staff Staff Officers Total

|£50,000 to £54,999

S

o o 0

£110000t0£114999 0 0 0O 0 0 0 0 .. 0
~ f115000t0f€119999 o O O 0O 0O 0 i 1
) A M | ) B 0 . 0 ... 0

125000t0£129999 0o 0 0 0 0 of o 0

: { : A et S O _________________ 0 ________________ 0 _____

1£135,000 to £139,999 | ‘ L of o 0
| ’ | | I o o 0
! o o 0

I 0 ... U 0

I 0 . 1 1

T 6 27

In 2018/19 the remuneration for 94 Police Officers (96 in 2017/18) superintendent rank and below (who are not
required to be disclosed in the above note under regulations) exceeded £50,000.

The table above includes those employees and senior police officers that are also required to be disclosed on a
more detailed individual basis. Please see note 23 for more information.
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Exit Packages/Termination Payments
The numbers of exit packages with total cost per band and a total cost of the compulsory and other redundancies
are set out in the table below:

Exit package cost band PCC/Group PCC/Group PCC/Group PCC/Group
(including special Number of Compulsory Number of other Total Number of Exit Total cost of exit
payments) Redundancies Departures Agreed Packages by cost band packages in each band
2017/18 2018/19 2017/18 2018/19 2017/18 2018/19 2017/18 2018/19
Headcount Headcount Headcount Headcount Headcount Headcount £000's £000's
£0-£20,00 0! 1 1| 1 1} 2 16| 21
£20,001 - £40,000 0 0 1 0 1 0 30, 0
£40,001 - £60,000 1l 1 1] 0 2 1 89! 41
£60,001 - £80,000 o 0 0 0 ol 0 o o0
£80,001 - £100,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 o0 o0
£100,001 - £150,000 0 0 1] 0 1 0 129 0
Total ' 1 2 4 1 5 3 264 62

During 2018/19 the contracts of a small number of employees were terminated incurring termination payments
amounting to £61k (£259k in 2017/18). This amount is made up exit packages paid and accrued in 2018/19.

The exit packages paid in 2018/19 amount to £62k (£264k in 2017/18). The exit packages can be further split
into compensation for loss of employment £24k (£176k in 2017/18) and enhanced pension benefits £38k (£88k
in 2017/18). The redundancies are as a result of the OPCC and Constabulary’s change programme. The Exit
Packages table above provides details of the number and total cost of exit packages per band and include those
exit packages paid in 2018/19 and those agreed for individuals in 2018/19 but paid in 2019/20 for which an
accrual was made in the 2018/19 accounts.

During 2018/19 an amount of -£1k arose as a result of a number of amounts that had been accrued in the
2017/18 accounts for which the final settlement during 2018/19 was slightly lower. These amounts are not
included in the above table in 2018/19 as the exit packages for those individuals are included in the 2017/18
column. The figure shown on the face of the Expenditure and Funding Analysis (pages 44-47) for 2018/19 is
made up of the exit packages paid in the year of £62k (per the table above) minus £1k in respect of these
differences in accruals.

During 2017/18 an amount of -£5k arose as a result of a number of amounts that had been accrued in the
2016/17 accounts for which the final settlement during 2017/18 was slightly lower. These amounts are not
included in the above table in 2017/18 as the exit packages for those individuals are included in the 2016/17
column. The figure shown on the face of the Expenditure and Funding Analysis (pages 44-47) for 2017/18 is
made up of the exit packages paid in the year of £264k (per the table above) minus £5k in respect of these
differences in accruals.

Accounting Policy - Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision to terminate an individual’s employment
before the normal retirement date or an officer’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy. These are
charged (on an accruals basis) to the relevant service line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement at the earlier of when the organisation can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits or when
the organisation recognises the costs for restructuring.

Where termination benefits involve enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions require the Police Fund
balance be charged with the amount payable to the pension fund or pensioner in the year, not the amount
calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement,
appropriations are required to and from the pensions reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for
pension enhancement termination benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension
fund and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end.

88| Page
Police and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria — Statement of Accounts 2018/19



Notes to the Accounts

26 Audit Fees
In 2018/19 the Commissioner and Chief Constable incurred the following fees relating to external audit services
provided by Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Group Group
External Audit Fees 2017/18  2018/19

£000s £000s

EFees payable to Grant Thornton UK LLP with regard to external audit services 30§ 23;
Ecarried out by the appointed auditor. | i :

..................................................................................................................................................................................................................

__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Fees payable to Grant Thornton UK LLP with regard to external audit services 15! 12
carrled out by the appointed auditor. | '

The above table shows the gross fees payable to the external auditor during the year. In 2017/18 rebates of
audit fees of £4k for the PCC and £2k for the Chief Constable were received from Public Sector Audit
Appointments.

89| Page
Police and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria — Statement of Accounts 2018/19




Notes to the Accounts

27 GrantIncome
The Commissioner credited the following grants and contributions to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement in 2018/19.

PCC/Group

Grant Income 2017/18 2018/19
£000s £000s
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Accounting Policy - Government Grants and Contributions
Whether paid on account, by installments or in arrears, government grants and third party contributions and
donations are recognised as due when there is reasonable assurance of:

o compliance with the conditions attached to the payments, and

o the grants or contributions will be received.

Amounts recognised as due are not credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement until
conditions attached to the grant or contribution have been satisfied. Conditions are stipulations that specify that
the future economic benefits or service potential embodied in the asset acquired using the grant or contribution
are required to be consumed by the recipient as specified, or future economic benefits or service potential must
be returned to the body making the grant or contribution.

Monies advanced as grants or contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are carried on the balance
sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or contribution is credited to the relevant function
line (attributable revenue grants and contributions) or Taxation and Non-Specific Grants Income (non-ringfenced
revenue grants and all capital grants) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, they are reversed
out of the Police Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where the grant has yet to be used to
finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the Capital Grants Unapplied reserve. Where it has been applied, it is
posted to the Capital Adjustment Account. Amounts in the Capital Grants Unapplied reserve are transferred to
the Capital Adjustment Account once they have been applied to fund capital expenditure.

In accordance with the statutory responsibility of the Commissioner to maintain the Police Fund contained within
the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011, all grants are recognised in the accounts of the
Commissioner.
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28 Income from Council Tax

Precept- The demands made by the Police and Crime Commissioner on the district councils who are the
billing authority in relation to the collection of council tax.

The income from Council Tax for 2018/19 is received as precept from the six district councils as set out below:

Council Tax Income

Precept
Paid
2018/19
£000s

PCC/Group

Adjustment Income

Re Debtors/ from

(Creditors) Council Tax
£000s £000s

Allerdale District Council 7,155 (111) 7,044
Barrow Borough Council 4,681 (113) 4,568
Carlisle City Council 7,854 (44) 7,810
Copeland Borough Council 4,904 (107) 4,797
Eden District Council 4,762 (57) 4,705
South Lakeland District Council 10,560 (81) 10,479

39,916 (513) 39,403

The comparative information for 2017/18 is as follows:

PCC/Group
Precept Adjustment Income
Council Tax Income Paid Re Debtors/ from
2017/18 (Creditors) Council Tax
£000s £000s £000s
Allerdale District Council 6,800 (47) 6,753
Barrow Borough Council 4,209 (33) 4,176
Carlisle City Council 7,409 (97) 7,312
Copeland Borough Council 4,588 (1) 4,587
Eden District Council 4,518 (81) 4,437
South Lakeland District Council 9,945 2 9,947
37,469 (257) 37,212
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29

Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing

Capital expenditure can be defined as expenditure on the acquisition, construction or enhancement of non-
current assets which adds to and not merely maintains the value of a non-current asset.

The commissioner approves on an annual basis a capital programme for the Constabulary. The capital
programme is fully funded for a four year period to tie in with the medium term financial forecast. The capital
programme covers the routine cyclical replacement of ICT equipment and vehicles and also includes specific one
off projects. Due to the cyclical nature of the majority of the capital programme, the programme is also
modelled at a high level over a 10 year longer term horizon. The capital programme for 2018/19 was approved
by the Commissioner at his Public Accountability Conference on 14 February 2018, papers for which can be
found on the Commissioner’s website.

The capital outturn report for 2018/19 was approved by the Commissioner on 9 May 2019 and can also be found
on the Commissioner’s website.

The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the year is shown in the table below.

PCC/Group

Capital Expenditure 2017/18  2018/19
£000s £000s

Technology Schemes

Case & Custody System 22 0
Computer Hardware & Infrastructure 586 452
Mobility & Digitisation 111 149
Wide Area Network (WAN) 67 0
Control Room Futures 296 208
ESN 34 0
Body Worn Video 225 63
Other Technology Schemes 38 87
1,379 959

Vehicles Replacement Scheme 1,614 939

Building Schemes

West Cumbria Land Purchase (25) 283
Eden Deployment Centre 273 1,800
Other Building Schemes 217 32

465 2,115

Equipment Schemes

County Wide CCTV System 7 0
Automatic Number Plate Recognition (ANPR) 0 50
CCTV and Cell Call (Durranbhill) 0 43
Ballistic Shields 0 44

7 137

Intangible Assets 1,790 1,064
Total Capital Expenditure 5,255 5,214
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29.a Capital Financing

30

The table below illustrates the resources used to finance capital expenditure. Where capital expenditure is to
be financed in future years by charges to revenue as assets are used by the Commissioner, the expenditure
results in an increase in the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), a measure of the capital expenditure incurred

historically by the Commissioner that has yet to be financed. The CFR is analysed below:

PCC/Group
Capital Financing Requirement 2017/18 2018/19
£000s £000s
Opening Capital Financing Requirement 18,402 17,979
Capital investment
Property, Plant and Equipment 3,465 4,150
Intangible Assets 1,790 1,064

Sources of Finance

Government grants and other contributions 0 (575)
Sums set aside from revenue:

- Direct revenue contributions (5,255) (2,839)
- Minimum revenue provision (423) (432)
Closing Capital Financing Requirement 17,979 19,347

Explanation of Movements in Year
Increase in underlying need to borrow (unsupported by government

financial assistance) (423) (432)
Notional/Internal Borrowing 0 1,800
Increase/(decrease) in Capital Financing Requirement (423) 1,368

Capital Commitments
The Commissioner has outstanding contractual commitments amounting to £5,195k in respect of a number of
schemes from the 2018/19 capital programme (£2,770k in 2017/18).

PCC/Group
As at 31 March
2018 2019
£000s £000s

Outstanding Capital Commitments

{Control Room Futures

:E Business
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31

32

Minimum Revenue Provision

Regulations 27 and 28 of the Capital Financing and Accounting Regulations 2003 require the Commissioner to
make a provision from revenue for the repayment of any undischarged credit liabilities. This is referred to as
the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP). Additional voluntary contributions are permitted, which have the effect
of reducing the Commissioner’s Capital Financing Requirement.

In line with the Capital Finance and Accounting regulations a Statement of MRP Policy was approved in February
2017 as part of the Treasury Management Strategy Statement. The policy states that MRP will be calculated
using the regulatory method for debt incurred prior to 1 April 2008 and on the asset life basis for debt incurred
after this date. In respect of PFl assets brought onto the balance sheet under the 2009 SORP, the MRP provision
will match the annual principal repayment for the associated deferred liability.

The Minimum Revenue Provision charged for the year 2018/19 (and comparatives for 2017/18) is made up as
follows:

PCC/Group PCC/Group

Minimum Revenue Provision 2017/18  2018/19
£000s £000s

_Mlnlmum Revenue Provisions (MRP)

Accounting Standards that have been Issued but have not yet been Adopted
For 2018/19 the following accounting policy changes that need to be reported relate to:

e Amendments to IAS 40 Investment Property: Transfers of Investment Property.
e Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2014 — 2016 cycle.

e |FRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration.

e |FRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments.

e Amendments to IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: Prepayments Features with Negative Compensation.

In the Financial Statements for 2019/20, the effect of the changes will be assessed and where necessary, the
comparative figures restated.
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33

Pension Challenge

The Chief Constable of Cumbria, along with other Chief Constables and the Home Office, currently has 146 claims
lodged against them with the Central London Employment Tribunal. The claims are in respect of alleged unlawful
discrimination arising from the Transitional Provisions in the Police Pension Regulations 2015.

Claims of unlawful discrimination have also been made in relation to the changes to the Judiciary and Firefighters
Pension regulations and in December 2018 the Court of Appeal (McCloud / Sargeant) ruled that the ‘transitional
protection’ offered to some members as part of the reform to public sector pensions amounts to unlawful
discrimination. On 27 June the Supreme Court refused leave to appeal on the McCloud case. In light of this it is
envisaged that the Court will require changes to arrangements for employees who were transferred to the new
schemes potentially including Police Pension Scheme members. This would to lead to an increase in Police
Pension Scheme liabilities and our actuaries (The Government Actuary Department ) using specific assumptions
and applying these across the Police scheme as a whole have estimated the potential increase in scheme
liabilities for Cumbria to be approximately 4.4% or £54.63m of pension scheme liabilities. This increase is
reflected in the IAS19 Disclosure as a Past Service Cost. The actuaries have highlighted that this estimate is based
on one potential remedy, the potential impact of any difference in the profile of the force’s membership
compared with the scheme as a whole and that the figures are highly sensitive to assumptions around short
term earnings growth.

The impact of an increase in scheme liabilities arising from McCloud / Sargeant judgment will be measured
through the pension valuation process, which determines employer and employee contribution rates. The next
Police Pension valuation is due to take place in 2020 with implementation of the results planned for 2023/24
and forces will need to plan for the impact of this on employer contribution rates alongside other changes
identified through the valuation process.

The impact of an increase in annual pension payments arising from McCloud / Sargeant is determined through
The Police Pension Fund Regulations 2007. These require a police authority to maintain a police pension fund
into which officer and employer contributions are paid and out of which pension payments to retired officers
are made. If the police pension fund does not have enough funds to meet the cost of pensions in year the
amount required to meet the deficit is then paid by the Secretary of State to the police authority in the form of
a central government top-up grant.

With regard to the LGPS a similar adjustment to past service costs within the IAS19 Disclosure has been made
for the McCloud judgment . This corresponds to a 3.16% or £1.654m increase in liabilities. The impact of an
increase in scheme liabilities arising from McCloud / Sargeant judgment will be measured through the pension
valuation process, which determines employer and employee contribution rates.’
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34  Prior Period Adjustment
There are no prior period adjustments in relation to the 2018/19 Statement of Accounts, the 2017/18
comparative figures are as reported in the 2017/18 Statement of Accounts.

Accounting Policy - Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and
Errors

Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to correct a material
error.

Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices or when the
change provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions, other events and
conditions on the financial position or performance. Where a change is made, it is applied retrospectively
(unless stated otherwise) by adjusting opening balances and comparative amounts and notes for the prior
period as if the new policy had always been applied.

Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e. in the current and future years
affected by the change and do not give rise to a prior period adjustment.
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Police Officer Pension Fund Account

This statement provides information on transactions on the Police Pension Fund Account for the 2018/19 financial
year together with comparative information for 2017/18.

Group Group
Police Officer Pension Fund Account 2017/18 2018/19
£000s £000s
Contributions Receivable
Employer
- Contributions (21.3% of Pensionable Pay in 2018/19 and 2017/18) (8,194) (8,506)
Officers' Contributions
- 1987 Scheme Member Contributions (see narrative for rates) (1,881) (1,572)
- 2006 Scheme Member Contributions (see narrative for rates) (102) (76)
- 2015 Scheme Member Contributions (see narrative for rates) (3,202) (3,724)
(13,379) (13,878)
Transferees in from Other Schemes (197) (178)
Capital Equivalent charge for ill-health schemes (160) (400)
(357) (578)
Benefits Payable
Recurrent Pensions 27,076 28,529
Commutations and Lump Sums 8,491 7,190
Other (Scheme Pays) 157 159
35,724 35,878
Payments to and on Account of Leavers
Refund of Contributions 25 21
Transfer out to other schemes 7 58
32 79
Net Amount Payable for the Year 22,020 21,501
Additional Contribution from the Police & Crime Commissioner (20,918) (20,343)
Additional Funding Payable by the Police and Crime Commissioner (2.9%) (1,102) (1,158)
Net Amount Payable (Receivable) for the Year 0 0

Net Assets Statement

This statement shows the net assets and liabilities of the scheme as at 31 March 2019.

Group Group
Pension Fund Net Assets & liabilities 2017/18 2018/19
£000s £000s
Current Assets
Pensions Benefits paid in advance 2,295 2,401
Current Liabilities
Amount due to the Police & Crime Commissioner (2,295) (2,401)
0 0
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Accounting Policies

The Police Pension Fund Accounts have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Police Pension
Fund Regulations 2015 (SI 2015 No 445). The Pensions Fund Accounts are administered by the Chief Constable and
have been prepared on an accruals basis.

Operation of Police Pensions Schemes

Since 1 April 2015 the Chief Constable has operated three Pensions Schemes for Police Officers. These are unfunded
schemes, meaning that there are no investment assets built up to meet the pensions liabilities, and cash has to be
generated to meet actual pension payments as they fall due. The original Police Officer Pension scheme is known as
the 1987 scheme. The second scheme was introduced in April 2006 with the intention that joint contributions of
employers and employees would finance the full costs of pension liabilities. All Police Officers recruited from April
2006 onwards automatically become members of the 2006 scheme and the previous 1987 scheme was closed to new
members. Officers who were members of the 1987 scheme were allowed by regulation to become members of the
2006 scheme if they wished. Members’ contribution rates for 2018/19 and 2017/18 were between 11% and 12.75%
for the 2006 scheme and between 14.25% and 15.05 for the 1987 scheme.

From 1 April 2015, a new pension scheme was introduced for Police Officers, known as the 2015 Scheme. The 2015
scheme is based on career average revalued earnings (CARE). All Police Officers recruited from 1 April 2015 will
automatically become members of the new scheme and the two previous schemes (1987 and 2006) have been closed
to new members from that date. Members of the two older police pension schemes will either be fully protected in
those schemes, transfer to the new 2015 scheme on 1 April 2015, or will transfer on different tapering dates in the
future subject to individual circumstances around age and length of service remaining. The members’ contribution
rates for the new scheme ranged between 12.44% and 13.78% in 2018/19 and 2017/18.

The financial statements for the Police Officer pension fund account do not take account of liabilities to pay pensions
and other benefits after the period end. Details of the Chief Constable’s long term pensions obligations can be found
in the main accounting statements (see Balance Sheet page 37). Detailed disclosure notes regarding the Police Pension
schemes can be found in the Technical Annex to the Statement of Accounts (Annex C Pensions on pages 112-123).

Funding of Police Pension Schemes

In 2006/07 a new arrangement was established to fund Police Pensions. This revised arrangement is for both new and
existing police officer schemes, but has no effect on the benefit structures of either scheme. The purpose of the
change is to smooth fluctuations in costs that would previously have been charged to the Chief Constable’s
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on a ‘pay as you go basis’ and to more clearly show the effect of
the liability as opposed to current pension payments. Under the revised arrangements the liability for payment of
police pensions is removed from the Chief Constable and replaced with an employers’ contribution, currently set at
21.3% of pensionable pay, which, along with the employee contributions and any transfer values, is paid into the
pensions account. In addition the Constabulary is required to make an additional contribution to the police pension
fund account which equates to 2.9% of pensionable pay to fund the difference between the pension fund deficit and
the amount of top up grant received from the Home Office. The employees’ and employer’s contribution levels are
based on percentages of pensionable pay set nationally by the Home Office and are subject to periodic revaluation by
the Government Actuary’s Department. Pensions are then paid from this account. The pensions account is balanced
to nil annually, with any shortfall met by a top up from the Commissioner, or vice versa. However, the Home Office
indemnify the Commissioner against any financial liability arising from a deficit on the Pension Account by providing a
grant to the Commissioner equal to the Commissioner’s top up. Similarly, any surplus on the Pension Account is
ultimately repayable to the Home Office.
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Glossary of Terms

Accruals

The concept that income and expenditure are recognised
as they are earned or incurred, not when money is paid
or received.

Actuarial Valuation

A valuation of assets held, an estimate of the present
value of benefits to be paid and an estimate of required
future contributions, by an actuary, for example on behalf
of a pension fund.

Agency Costs

Services which are performed by or for another authority
or public body, where the agent is reimbursed for the cost
of the work done.

Amortisation/Amortised Cost

The practice of reducing the value of assets to reflect their
reduced worth over time. The term means the same as
depreciation, though in practice amortisation tends to be
used for the write-off of intangible assets, such as
computer software.

Budget

A statement of the Police and Crime Commissioner’s
plans in financial terms. A budget is prepared and
approved by the Police and Crime Commissioner before
the start of each financial year and is used to monitor
actual expenditure throughout the year.

Capital Adjustment Account

The CAA records the balance of resources set aside to
finance capital expenditure (i.e. Capital Receipts,
Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP), Direct Revenue
Contributions (DRC) and Deferred Grants Account (DGA))
and also the consumption of resources associated with
the historical cost of acquiring, creating or enhancing
non-current assets over the life of those assets (i.e.
depreciation/impairment).

Capital Expenditure

As defined in section 16 of the Local Government Act
2003 and regulation 25 of the Capital Finance and
Accounting Regulations 2003, but broadly expenditure on
the acquisition of a non-current asset or expenditure
which adds to and not merely maintains the value of an
existing non-current asset.

Capital Financing Requirement (CFR)

The CFR is a measure of the extent to which the
Commissioner needs to borrow to support capital
expenditure. It does not necessarily relate to the actual
amount of borrowing at any point in time.

Capital Receipt

Monies received from the sale of capital assets, which
may be used to finance new capital expenditure or to
repay outstanding loan debt as laid down within rules
prescribed by Central Government. Capital Receipts
cannot be used to finance revenue expenditure, with the
exception that up to 4% of sale proceeds may be
transferred to the General Fund to finance costs directly
associated with the disposal of the asset.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cashis represented by cash in hand and in bank accounts.
Cash Equivalents include demand deposits with financial
institutions which are highly liquid in that they are
repayable without penalty on notice of not more that 24
hours.

CC or Chief Constable
The Chief Constable for Cumbria Constabulary.

CFO
The Joint Chief Finance Officer.

CIPFA
The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and
Accountancy. The main professional body for

accountants working in the public services.

Commissioner
The Police and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria.

Componentisation

Identifying and depreciating the components of an asset
separately if they have differing patterns of benefits
relative to the total cost of the asset.

Contingency
A sum set aside to meet unforeseen expenditure.

Creditors

Amounts owed by the Police and Crime Commissioner for
goods and services provided which had not been paid for
at the end of the financial year.
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Glossary of Terms

Debtors
Amounts owing to the Police and Crime Commissioner
but not received at the end of the financial year.

Depreciation

The measure of the wearing out, consumption, or other
reduction in the useful economic life of a non-current
asset, whether arising from use, passage of time or
obsolescence through technological or other changes.

De-minimis

In general the term means lacking in significance or
importance. In terms of the accounts, a de-minimis limit
is set for inclusion of projects in the capital programme,
below this limit projects would be charged to revenue
budgets.

Direct Revenue Contributions (DRC)

Resources provided from the Police and Crime
Commissioner’s revenue budget to finance the cost of
capital projects.

Earmarked Reserves
Those elements of the Police Fund that have been set
aside, “earmarked”, for specific purposes.

Fair Value

In accounting and economics, fair value is a rational and
unbiased estimate of the potential market price of a
good, service, or asset.

Hedge Funds

A hedge fund is a pooled investment vehicle administered
by a professional management firm, and often structured
as a limited partnership/ limited liability company.
Hedge funds invest in a diverse range of markets and use
a wide variety of investment styles and financial
instruments.

Heritage Assets

A tangible asset with historical, artistic, scientific,
technological, geophysical or environmental qualities
that is held and maintained principally for its contribution
to knowledge or culture.

HMICFRS
Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of Constabulary and Fire &
Rescue Services who are a government agency
responsible for monitoring the standards and
performance of Constabularies and Fire and Rescue
Services.

Impairment/Impaired
A reduction in the value of a non-current asset below its
carrying amount on the balance sheet.

Investment Property

Property (land or building) held solely to earn rentals or
for capital appreciation or both, rather than for
operational reasons such as the provision of services.

Leasing
A method of financing expenditure over a period of time.
There are two main types of lease:

e Finance Lease - where the risks of ownership are
transferred to the lessee and where the assets are
recorded in the Police and Crime Commissioner’s
balance sheet at a current valuation.

e Operating Lease - where the risks of ownership stay
with the leasing company and the annual rental
charges are made via the Revenue Account.

MHCLG
The Ministry of Housing,
Government (formerly DCLG).

Communities and Local

Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP)

The minimum amount which must be set aside in the
Revenue Account each year as a provision for credit
liabilities.

Non-current Assets
An asset, which will yield a benefit to the Police and Crime
Commissioner for a period of more than one year.

NPCC
The National Police Chiefs Council.

PCC
The Police and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria.

Pension actuarial gains and losses
For a defined benefit scheme, the changes in actuarial
deficits or surpluses that arise because:

e events have not coincided with actuarial
assumptions made for the last valuation
(experience gains and losses) or

e the actuarial assumptions have changed.
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Glossary of Terms

Pension — current service costs

The increase in the present value of a defined benefit’s
liabilities expected to arise from employee service in the
current period.

Pension — defined benefit scheme

A pension or other retirement benefit scheme other than
a defined contribution scheme. The scheme rules define
the benefits independently of the contribution payable,
and the benefits are not directly related to the
investments of the scheme. The scheme may be funded
or unfunded.

Pension assets — expected rate of return

For a funded defined benefits scheme, the average rate
of return, including both income and changes in fair value
but net of scheme expenses, expected over the remaining
life of the related obligation on the actual assets held by
the scheme.

Pension — interest costs

For a defined